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UOA REIT

Glossary

Manager
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd 200501015592 (692639-U)

Trustee
RHB Trustees Berhad 200201005356 (573019-U)

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar
Consisting of a tower block, namely Tower B comprising
15 levels of office space, 3 levels of retail podium, 6 levels
of elevated car park and 4 levels of basement car park
(which form part of a development known as Menara UOA
Bangsar)

Unitholders
Unitholders of UOA REIT

Properties
Wisma UOA Damansara II, UOA Corporate Tower, Parcel B
– Menara UOA Bangsar and the parcels within UOA Centre,
UOA II and UOA Damansara

UOA Holdings Group
UOA Holdings Sdn Bhd 198901012937 (190246-V)
and its subsidiaries

Property Manager
Jordan Lee & Jaafar Sdn Bhd 198001006117 (59901-U)

UOA Corporate Tower - Lobby

UOA Ltd Group
United Overseas Australia Ltd (ACN009245890) and its
subsidiaries

UOA REIT/The Trust
UOA Real Estate Investment Trust
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Corporate Information
MANAGER
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd
200501015592 (692639-U)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF
THE MANAGER
UOA Corporate Tower
Lobby A, Avenue 10, The Vertical
Bangsar South City
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 2245 9188
Facsimile:
+603 2241 4862
REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE
MANAGER
No. 9, Jalan Indah 16
Taman Cheras Indah
56100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 9287 1000
Facsimile:
+603 9287 2000
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGER
Alan Charles Winduss (Chairman)
Kong Sze Choon (Chief Executive
Officer)
Kung Beng Hong
Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay
Yap Kang Beng
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
Kung Beng Hong (Chairman)
Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay
Alan Charles Winduss
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF THE
MANAGER
Yap Kai Weng (MAICSA No.: 74580)
Wong Yoke Leng (MAICSA No.: 7032314)

MANAGEMENT TEAM OF THE
MANAGER
Kong Sze Choon (Chief Executive
Officer/Executive Director)
Liao Wan Xin (Accountant)
Fam Chai Hing (Compliance Officer)
TRUSTEE
RHB Trustees Berhad

200201005356 (573019-U)

Level 11, Tower Three
RHB Centre
Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 9280 8799
Facsimile:
+603 9280 8796
PROPERTY MANAGER
Jordan Lee & Jaafar Sdn Bhd
198001006117 (59901-U)

Suite 1.1, Level 1, Block C
Plaza Damansara
45, Jalan Medan Setia 1
Bukit Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 2095 5811
Facsimile:
+603 2095 5843
REGISTRAR OF THE TRUST IN
CHARGE OF THE REGISTER OF
UNITHOLDERS
Tricor Investor & Issuing House
Services Sdn Bhd
198401005881 (118401-V)

Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3
Bangsar South City
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 2783 9299
Facsimile:
+603 2783 9222

AUDITORS
Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT

(201906003682 & LLP0022494-LCA)
Chartered Accountants (AF 0737)

Level 11, Sheraton Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone: +603 2692 4022
Facsimile:
+603 2732 5119

BANKERS
CIMB Bank Berhad
AmBank Islamic Berhad
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
Berhad
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
HSBC Amanah Malaysia Berhad
Hong Leong Bank Berhad
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Stock Code: UOA REIT 5110
WEBSITE
www.uoareit.com.my
INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email: 		
uoacare@uoa.com.my
Telephone:	1 300 88 6668
(Malaysia)
			+603 2245 9192
(International)
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER

Alan Charles Winduss

Kong Sze Choon

Alan Charles Winduss, Australian, male, aged 80, is an
Independent Non-Executive Chairman and a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He was
appointed on 28 November 2005 as Director and was
re-designated to Chairman on 21 April 2016. He was redesignated to Independent Non-Executive Director on 18
April 2018. He is also a Director of Winduss & Associates Pty
Ltd. He has been involved in the professional accounting
in public practice for over 34 years, specialising in matters
relating to corporate management, restructuring,
corporate finance and company secretarial matters
including the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX”) and
the Australian Securities Exchange and Investments
Commission compliance. The accounting practice of
Winduss & Associates Pty Ltd lists among its field of
expertise matters relating to property development,
management and ownership. He sits on the board of two
companies listed on the ASX, and serves on the board
of Australian incorporated private limited companies.
Mr. Winduss is also Independent Non-Executive Director of
UOA Development Bhd and United Overseas Australia Ltd,
the ultimate holding company of the Manager.

Kong Sze Choon, Singaporean, male, aged 44, is Chief
Executive Officer and Non-Independent Executive Director.
He was appointed on 14 January 2011. He is a graduate of
Curtin University of Technology, Australia with a Bachelor
of Commerce Degree in Finance. Mr. Kong worked in
financial institutions in Singapore where he was involved
in managing and growing the investment portfolio of high
net worth individuals. He was part of the management
team and held the position of Asset Management Manager
prior to his appointment as Chief Executive Officer.

(Independent Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr. Winduss graduated from the then Perth Technical
College (now known as Curtin University) with a Diploma in
Accounting in 1963. He is a member of various professional
bodies including the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and the Certified Public Accountants Australia.
In addition, he is an Associate Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Management, a Fellow of the Taxation Institute
of Australia, a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors and a registered Australian Company Auditor.
He does not have any family relationship with any Director
and/or major unitholder of UOA REIT, nor any conflict of
interest with the Manager, UOA Asset Management Sdn
Bhd. He has no conviction for any offences, and there is
no sanction or penalty imposed on him by any regulatory
bodies over the past 5 years.

(Chief Executive Officer and
Non-Independent Executive Director)

He joined UOA Holdings Group in 2002 and his initial roles
in UOA Holdings Group were predominantly in leasing as
well as sales and marketing of commercial and residential
developments of the UOA Holdings Group. Apart from his
key role in the Leasing department, he was also involved in
business development of UOA Holdings Group.
He is currently Director of UOA (Singapore) Pte Ltd, a
subsidiary company of the ultimate holding company of
the Manager, United Overseas Australia Ltd (“UOA Ltd”).
He is also the Alternate Director to Mr. Kong Chong Soon,
Managing Director of UOA Development Bhd.
He is the son of Mr. Kong Chong Soon, an indirect
major shareholder of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd
(“Manager”) and a major unitholder of UOA REIT via his
interest in UOA Ltd Group. He does not have any conflict of
interest with the Manager and has no convictions for any
offences, and there is no sanction or penalty imposed on
him by any regulatory bodies over the past 5 years.
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Kung Beng Hong

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

Kung Beng Hong, Malaysian, male, aged 75, is one of our
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Chairman of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He was
appointed on 28 November 2005. He is a graduate of
University of Malaya majoring in Economics and a Fellow
of Institute of Bankers, Malaysia. He has had an illustrious
career in the banking industry over the last 52 years where
he held numerous senior management posts including
stints in United States of America and Singapore with
Citibank where he served for 19 years. Other notable
positions held include Senior General Manager of MBF Bhd
(1984 – 1986), General Manager/Executive Director of United
Asian Bank (1986 – 1992), Chief Executive Officer/Director
of Overseas Union Bank (1992 – 2002), Managing Director/
Chief Executive Officer of AmBank (M) Berhad (2002 –
2003), Group Chief Executive Officer/Director of EON Bank
Group (2003 – 2004) and Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director of Alliance Bank Malaysia Bhd and Chairman/
Non-Executive Director of Alliance Investment Bank Bhd.
He served as Adviser to Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte Ltd
until his contract ended on 29 February 2020.

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay, Malaysian, male, aged 67, is
one of our Independent Non-Executive Directors and a
member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
He was appointed on 16 November 2005. He holds
a Bachelor of Science (First Class Honours) Degree in
Civil, Structural and Environmental Engineering from
University College London, University of London, United
Kingdom. He was awarded the Chadwick Medal & Prize
in 1977. He has also successfully completed the East Asian
Executive Leadership Course from Harvard University,
Boston, United States of America. On 19 March 2012, he
was conferred the IEM Honorary Member Award by the
Institution of Engineers, Malaysia.

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

He also holds directorships in Asian Institute of Finance
Bhd (a non-listed public company limited by guarantee),
Alliance Financial Group Bhd, both of which are under
Members’ Voluntary Liquidation, and Quill Motorcars Sdn
Bhd.
He does not have any family relationship with any Director
and/or major unitholder of UOA REIT, nor any conflict of
interest with the Manager, UOA Asset Management Sdn
Bhd. He has no conviction for any offences, and there is
no sanction or penalty imposed on him by any regulatory
bodies over the past 5 years.

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay has over 44 years of experience in
property and project management as well as property
development and investment. After a 3-year stint as
Property and Project Manager of Rahim & Co, Chartered
Surveyors, he co-founded the Senawang Land group of
companies and served on the Board initially as Project
Director and for the last 32 years as Managing Director.
He also holds directorships in various private limited
companies.
Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay was appointed Chairman of Plaza
Mont’ Kiara Management Corporation in October 2017
until December 2019. He was also the Chairman of Plaza
Mont’ Kiara Joint Management Body from January 2014
to June 2015 (until the formation of Plaza Mont’ Kiara
Management Corporation).
He does not have any family relationship with any Director
and/or major unitholder of UOA REIT, nor any conflict of
interest with the Manager, UOA Asset Management Sdn
Bhd. He has no convictions for any offences, and there is
no sanction or penalty imposed on him by any regulatory
bodies over the past 5 years.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER (Continued)

Yap Kang Beng

(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

Yap Kang Beng, Malaysian, male, aged 45, was appointed
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director on 18 March
2016. He graduated with a Degree in Bachelor of Economics
(Honours) in Accounting and Finance from University of
Manchester, United Kingdom.
He joined UOA Holdings Sdn Bhd in 2010. His duties
included corporate affairs and investor relations matters.
He is also involved in leasing as well as sales and marketing
of commercial developments of UOA Holdings Group.
He worked in the financial industry for over 14 years prior
to joining UOA Holdings Group. Before he assumed the
present position, he was a global investment specialist in
J.P. Morgan Private Bank (Singapore). Prior to that, he also
took up different roles in Treasury and Risk Management
in Hong Leong Bank Berhad and Standard Chartered Bank
Berhad.
He does not have any family relationship with any Director
and/or major unitholder of UOA REIT, nor any conflict of
interest with the Manager, UOA Asset Management Sdn
Bhd. He has no convictions for any offences, and there is
no sanction or penalty imposed on him by any regulatory
bodies over the past 5 years.
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management discussion and analysis

UOA Damansara & UOA Damansara II

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS,
OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES
UOA Real Estate Investment Trust (“UOA REIT” or “Trust”) is
a real estate trust fund which commenced its operations
on 1 December 2005 and was listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 30 December 2005.
The principal activity of UOA REIT is to invest in a diversified
portfolio of real estate and real estate-related assets
used, or predominantly used, for commercial purposes.
Geographically, it is presently focused in Kuala Lumpur
where all existing assets in the portfolio are located in.
The objective of UOA REIT and its subsidiary (the “Group”)
is to achieve a stable return from rental income and long
term capital growth in its assets. In order to enhance
the performance of the Properties in the portfolio, the
Group employs active operating strategies which include
optimising of rental income via management of tenancies
and renewals, improving tenant retentions through
relationship management, working closely with Property
manager to pursue new tenancy opportunities. The Group
also, where practicable, carry out Asset Enhancement
Initiatives to maintain or improve the quality and appearance
of the Properties.
The Manager seeks to enhance the unit value through selective
acquisitions. Apart from seeking yield-accretive acquisitions,
the acquisition strategy also takes into consideration the
location, existing occupancy rate, specifications, facilities
as well as the tenant mix of the building.

Capitalising on the relationship with UOA Holdings Group of
companies, one of Malaysia’s leading property development,
property investment, property management services and
construction group of companies, the Manager expects
to be at a competitive advantage and benefit towards
achieving its long term acquisition objectives.
The Properties in the portfolio are intended to be held on
a long term basis. Where a property has reached a phase
with limited prospect for growth, selling the property can
be considered.
The Manager will continue to actively manage the portfolio of
properties to maximise the yield for unitholders. Meanwhile,
the Manager will continue to source for opportune
acquisitions that meet the objectives of UOA REIT.
Guided by the gearing limits stipulated in Securities
Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”), the Manager aims to optimise
the Group’s capital structure and cost of capital.
The Management is aware of the recent outbreak of the novel
coronavirus, COVID-19, and is taking some precautionary
actions by increasing the frequency of hygiene and
cleaning services as well as sending circular to tenants
to raise awareness in REIT Buildings. Where necessary,
the Management will consider the next course of action
guided by instruction issued by the Ministry Of Health.
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management discussion and analysis (Continued)

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES
During the financial year, the Manager continued to adopt
the following strategies in achieving the Group’s investment
objective:
Operating strategy
The Group’s operating strategy is to continue to enhance
the performance of the properties by increasing yields and
returns from the properties through a combination of retaining
existing tenants, reducing vacancy levels, adding and/or
optimising retail/office space at the properties and minimising
interruptions in rental income and operational costs.
The Manager expects to apply the following key operating
and management principles:
(a)	to optimise rental rates via active management of
tenancies, renewals and new tenancies;
(b)	maintaining a close relationship with tenants to optimise
tenant retentions;
(c)	actively working with the property manager to pursue
new tenancy opportunities;
(d)	to optimise tenant mix and space configuration;
(e)	continuous review of tenant mix and if practicable,
reconfigure lettable space; and
(f)	continually maintain the quality of the properties.
Acquisition strategy
The Manager seeks to increase cash flow and enhance unit
value through selective acquisitions. The acquisition strategy
takes into consideration:
(a)	location;
(b)	occupancy and tenant mix;
(c)	building and facilities specifications;
(d)	opportunities; and
(e)	yield thresholds.
The Manager has access to a network of and good relationships
with leading participants in the real estate industry which may
assist the Group in identifying (a) acquisition opportunities
that have favourable returns on invested capital and growth
in cash flow; and (b) under-performing assets. The Manager
believes that these deal-sourcing capabilities are an important
competitive advantage of the Group.
The Manager intends to capitalise on the relationship with
UOA Holdings Group of companies, which is one of Malaysia’s
leading property development, property investment, property
management services and construction group of companies.
This relationship is expected to accord the Group competitive
advantages and benefits towards achieving its long-term
objectives.

The Manager intends to hold the properties on a long-term
basis. In the future where the Manager considers that any
property has reached a stage that offers only limited scope
for growth, they may consider selling the property and using
the proceeds from the sale for alternative investments in
properties that meet its investment criteria.
Capital management strategy
The Manager aims to optimise the Group’s capital structure
and cost of capital within the borrowing limits prescribed
by the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real
Estate Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”) and intends to
use a combination of debt and equity funding for future
acquisitions and improvement works at the properties. Our
capital management strategies involve:
(a)	adopting and maintaining an optimal gearing level; and
(b)	adopting an active interest rate management strategy to
manage risks associated with changes in interest rates.
while maintaining flexibility in the Group’s capital structure
to meet future investment and/or capital requirements.

INVESTMENT POLICIES
Portfolio composition
The Group’s investments may be allocated in the following
manner, as prescribed by the REIT Guidelines:
(a)	to invest in real estate, single-purpose companies whose
principal assets comprise real estate, real estate-related
assets, non-real estate-related assets or liquid assets;
(b)	at least 50% of the Group’s total assets must be invested in
real estate or single-purpose companies whose principal
assets comprise real estate, at all times; and
(c)	not more than 25% of the Group’s total assets may be
invested in non-real estate-related assets and/or liquid
assets.
Diversification
The Group will seek to diversify its real estate portfolio by
property and location type. The Group will focus on investing
in properties that are primarily used for office, retail and/or
residential purposes and will continue to look for opportunities
in these types of properties. In addition, it may also look into
other properties that will provide attractive risk-adjusted
returns.
Leverage
The Group will be able to leverage on its borrowings to make
the permitted investments. Leveraging on its borrowings will
increase the returns to unitholders. The Group is permitted
to procure borrowings of up to 50% of its total asset value.
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DISTRIBUTION POLICY
At least 90% of the distributable income of the Trust will be distributed semi-annually or at such other intervals as determined
by the Manager, in arrears.

COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties value increased to RM1,738 million mainly due to the acquisition
of UOA Corporate Tower amounting to RM718 million.
The total number of properties in the portfolio increased to six (6) (2019: five (5)).
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had also undertaken a revaluation exercise for all existing investment properties. The
investment properties were valued at RM1,738,100,000 by independent registered valuers. This resulted in an aggregate
revaluation surplus of RM1,756,195 as at 31 December 2020.
A summary of unrealised gain/(loss) on all investment properties for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Properties
UOA Centre Parcels

Carrying
Value before
Revaluation
(RM)

Market
Value*
(RM)

Unrealised
gain/(loss)**
(RM)

85,100,000

78,700,000

(6,400,000)

UOA II Parcels

294,000,000

291,600,000

(2,400,000)

UOA Damansara Parcels

121,000,000

118,700,000

(2,300,000)

Wisma UOA Damansara II

236,140,241

231,100,000

(5,040,241)

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar

298,450,000

300,000,000

1,550,000

UOA Corporate Tower

701,653,564

718,000,000

16,346,436

1,736,343,805

1,738,100,000

1,756,195

Total

*	Market value based on valuations conducted by independent registered valuers.
**	This revaluation gain of RM1,756,195 increase in the net asset value per unit of the Group by 0.26 sen to RM1.4510 as at
31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s composition of investment portfolio was as follows:
(RM)

%

Real estate properties
UOA Centre Parcels

78,700,000

4.51

UOA II Parcels

291,600,000

16.72

UOA Damansara Parcels

118,700,000

6.81

Wisma UOA Damansara II

231,100,000

13.25

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar

300,000,000

17.21

UOA Corporate Tower

718,000,000

41.18

3,700,000

0.21

Liquid assets
Deposits with licensed financial institutions
Bank balances

1,713,230

0.10

1,743,513,230

100.00

9

10

UOA REIT

management discussion and analysis (Continued)

COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

UOA Centre Parcels
Address/
Location

Within UOA Centre at No. 19, Jalan
Pinang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur

Description

Parcels within the thirty-three (33)
storey office building known as UOA
Centre inclusive of six (6) levels of car
park space

Title details

Twenty-eight (28) strata titles within
UOA Centre identified as Bangunan
M1, held under Master Title Geran
46212, Lot No. 1312, Section 57, Town
and District of Kuala Lumpur, State
of Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Property type

Office parcels

Net lettable
area

124,009 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 26 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

Freehold

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a)	Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia
Bhd
(b) United Carparks Sdn Bhd
(c) Halim Hong & Quek

Occupancy rate 78.3%
(based secured
tenancies)
Rental
received/
receivable

RM5,734,434

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to
RM1,895,101. No capital expenditure
incurred during the financial year

Encumbrances

None

Date of
acquisition

29 November 2005

Cost of
acquisition

RM55,981,272

Last valuation

RM78,700,000

Date of last
valuation

31 December 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM78,700,000
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COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows (continued):

UOA II Parcels
Address/
Location

Within UOA II at No. 21, Jalan Pinang,
50450 Kuala Lumpur

Description

Parcels within the thirty-nine (39)
storey office building known as UOA
II inclusive of five (5) levels of car park
space

Title details

Sixty-eight (68) strata titles within
UOA II identified as Bangunan M2,
held under Master Title Geran 46212,
Lot No. 1312, Section 57, Town and
District of Kuala Lumpur, State of
Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Property type

Office parcels

Net lettable
area

427,289 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 22 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

Freehold

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a)	Envico Enterprises Sdn Bhd
(b)	United Carparks Sdn Bhd
(c)	Sabah International Petroleum
Sdn Bhd

Occupancy
rate (based
on secured
tenancies)

78.1%

Rental
received/
receivable

RM18,149,315

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to
RM4,971,785. No capital expenditure
incurred during the financial year

Encumbrances

Charged to a financial institution as
security for revolving credit facilities

Date of
acquisition

29 November 2005
(Excluding Level 17, UOA II)
22 March 2010 (Level 17, UOA II)

Cost of
acquisition

RM194,502,300

Last valuation

RM291,600,000

Date of last
valuation

31 December 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM291,600,000
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management discussion and analysis (Continued)

COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows (continued):

UOA Damansara Parcels
Address/
Location

Within UOA Damansara at No. 50,
Jalan Dungun, Damansara Heights,
50490 Kuala Lumpur

Description

Parcels within the thirteen (13)
storey office building known as UOA
Damansara inclusive of four (4) levels
of basement car park space

Title details

Thirty (30) strata titles within UOA
Damansara identified as Bangunan
M1, held under Master Title Geran
67371, Lot No. 55917, Mukim and
District of Kuala Lumpur, State of
Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Property type

Office parcels

Net lettable
area

186,395 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 23 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

Freehold

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a) Skrine
(b)	United Carparks Sdn Bhd
(c)	Kerajaan Malaysia

Occupancy
rate (based
on secured
tenancies)

85.0%

Rental
received/
receivable

RM9,472,418

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to
RM2,911,029. No capital expenditure
incurred during the financial year

Encumbrances

Charged to a financial institution as
security for revolving credit facilities

Date of
acquisition

29 November 2005

Cost of
acquisition

RM72,000,000

Last valuation

RM118,700,000

Date of last
valuation

31 December 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM118,700,000
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COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows (continued):

Wisma UOA Damansara II
Address/
Location

No. 6, Changkat Semantan, Damansara
Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur

Description

A sixteen (16) storey office building with
3 levels of elevated car park space and
5 levels of basement car park space

Title details

Geran 6837, Lot No. 38415, Mukim
and District of Kuala Lumpur, State
of Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Property type

Commercial building

Net lettable
area

291,133 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 13 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

Freehold

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a)	Radimax Group Sdn Bhd
(b)	United Carparks Sdn Bhd
(c)	Synthomer Sdn Bhd

Occupancy
rate (based
on secured
tenancies)

87.7%

Rental
received/
receivable

RM15,529,392

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to
RM2,424,621. No capital expenditure
incurred during the financial year

Encumbrances

Charged to a financial institution as
security for revolving credit facilities

Date of
acquisition

17 January 2011

Cost of
acquisition

RM211,000,000

Last valuation

RM231,100,000

Date of last
valuation

31 December 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM231,100,000
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management discussion and analysis (Continued)

COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows (continued):

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar
Address/
Location

Within Menara UOA Bangsar No. 5, Jalan
Bangsar Utama 1, 59000 Kuala Lumpur

Description

A tower block, namely Tower B
comprising fifteen (15) levels of office
space, three (3) levels of retail podium,
six (6) levels of elevated car park space
and four (4) levels of basement car park
space (which form part of a development
known as Menara UOA Bangsar)

Title details

Thirteen (13) strata titled within Menara
UOA Bangsar, identified as Bangunan
M1 and M1-A, held under Master Title
Pajakan Negeri (WP) 43411, Lot No. 421,
Section 96, Town and District of Kuala
Lumpur, State of Wilayah Persekutuan KL

Property type

Commercial building

Net lettable
area

308,086 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 12 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

99 years leasehold expiring in 2106
(unexpired term of approximately 86
years)

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a)	Perbadanan Harta Intelek Malaysia
(b)	United Carparks Sdn Bhd
(c)	Prasarana Malaysia Berhad

Occupancy
rate (based
on secured
tenancies)

92.7%

Rental
received/
receivable

RM23,265,997

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to
RM5,931,647. No capital expenditure
incurred during the financial year

Encumbrances

Charged to a financial institution as
security for revolving credit facilities
(There are no encumbrances on Petak
9 and 14)

Date of
acquisition

17 January 2011

Cost of
acquisition

RM287,760,483

Last valuation

RM300,000,000

Date of last
valuation

31 December 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM300,000,000
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COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (Continued)
The details of the real estate properties as at 31 December 2020 are as follows (continued):

UOA Corporate Tower
Address/
Location

UOA Corporate Tower, Avenue 10, The
Vertical, Bangsar South City, No. 8,
Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur

Description

A stratified 38-storey office building
with a penthouse level known as
UOA Corporate Tower

Title details

Provisional parcel property identified
as Vertical 38 Block A, erected on a
portion of land held under Master
Title No. Pajakan Negeri 46338,
Lot 58190, Mukim and District of
Kuala Lumpur, State of Wilayah
Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur

Property type

Commercial building

Net lettable
area

732,871 sq.ft.

Age

Approximately 4 years

Existing use

Commercial

Status of
holding

99 years leasehold expiring in 2106
(unexpired term of approximately 86
years)

Major tenants
(based on
monthly rental
receivable)

(a) 	Honeywell International Sdn Bhd
(b) 	UOA Group of Companies
(c) 	Swift Support Services Malaysia
Sdn Bhd

Occupancy
rate (based
on secured
tenancies)

94.0%

Rental
received/
receivable

RM203,967

Maintenance
costs and
capital
expenditure

Maintenance costs amount to RM19,563.
No capital expenditure incurred during
the financial year

Encumbrances

Charged to a financial institution as
security for revolving credit facilities

Date of
acquisition

30 December 2020

Cost of
acquisition

RM701,653,564

Last valuation

RM718,000,000

Date of last
valuation

7 August 2020

Basis of
valuation

Comparison and Income Approach

Independent
valuer

PA International Property Consultants
(KL) Sdn Bhd

Net carrying
amount

RM718,000,000

15

16

UOA REIT

management discussion and analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Year ended
31 December
2019

Year ended
31 December
2018

Year ended
31 December
2017

Year ended
31 December
2016

79,032,011

78,585,653

82,349,551

89,731,158

38,435,875

40,986,917

57,649,915

37,877,410

45,053,860

36,719,912

39,540,726

35,004,263

38,010,082

45,217,832

Year ended
31 December
2020
Total gross income (RM)
Income before tax (RM)

72,692,689

Income/(Loss) after tax (RM)
- Realised

(1,969,037)

- Unrealised
Total

(19,704,539)

22,532,509

(132,672)

4,413,829

34,750,875

19,836,187

57,536,772

37,877,410

49,631,661

8.63

9.35

8.28

8.99

10.69

(0.47)

(4.66)

5.33

(0.03)

1.05

4.69

13.61

8.96

11.74

8.44

9.11

9.13

8.55

10.48

980,298,696

706,554,728

725,242,159

706,313,578

704,591,093

Earnings/(Loss) per unit (sen)
- Realised
- Unrealised
Total

8.16

Distribution per unit (sen)

1,763,839,508 1,046,825,669 1,049,495,779 1,139,654,374 1,137,969,137

Total asset value (RM)
Net asset value (RM)
Net asset value per unit (RM)

1.451

1.671

1.715

1.670

1.666

Highest net asset value per
unit (RM)

1.721

1.719

1.727

1.670

1.666

Lowest net asset value per
unit (RM)

1.451

1.671

1.671

1.667

1.654

Market price per unit (RM)

1.13

1.23

1.31

1.62

1.76

Highest traded price for the
financial year (RM)

1.29

1.46

1.64

1.91

1.87

Lowest traded price for the
financial year (RM)
Annual total returns (RM)(1)
Average total returns
- for one year
- for three years
- for five years
(1)

1.07

1.20

1.29

1.60

1.56

7.41%

6.97%

5.28%

5.95%

36,719,912

39,540,726

35,004,263

38,010,082

45,217,832

4.89%

8.31%

7.35%

7.98%

9.50%

7.88%

8.28%

9.15%

9.82%

8.62%

8.96%

9.42%

9.82%

7.47%

Distribution yield
(2)

6.85%
7.61%

Annual total returns are defined as realised income after tax.
Average total returns are calculated based on annual total returns for the respective financial years divided by
unitholders’ capital for the respective financial years.

(2) 	

Note:	Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance. Unit prices and investment returns may
fluctuate in line with economic conditions and subsequent trust performance.
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1.666

1.670

1.671

10.48
8.55

9.13

9.11

Net Asset Value
Per Unit (Sen)

8.96

8.44

11.74

13.61
4.69

1.451

8.16

45,053,860

37,877,410

57,649,915

40,986,917

38,435,875

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Distribution
Per Unit (Sen)

1.715

Earnings
Per Unit (Sen)

Income
before tax (RM)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Net asset value

Volume (Units)

200,000

2018

2017

1,137,969

704,591

1,139,654

706,314

1,049,496

725,242

1,046,826

2019

2016

Total asset value

Trading Performance and Market Price Per Unit

1.9

180,000

1.8

160,000

1.7

140,000

1.6

120,000

1.5

100,000

1.4

80,000

1.3

60,000
40,000

1.2

20,000

1.1

0

1.0

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020
2020
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

Market price

Volume

Market Price Per Unit (RM)

2020

706,555

980,299

1,763,840

Total Asset Value and Net Asset Value (RM'000)
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
1)

Overall Financial Results
As at 31
December
2020
RM’000
Total gross income
Property operating expenses
Non-property expenses
Finance costs
Income before tax, fair value gain
on investment properties and net
changes on financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
Fair value gain on investment properties
Net changes on financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
Income before tax
Tax (expense)/income
Income after tax

72,693

As at 31
December
2019
RM’000

As at 31
December
2018
RM’000

As at 31
December
2017
RM’000

As at 31
December
2016
RM’000

79,032

78,586

82,349

89,731

20,456

20,756

20,944

22,514

22,884

5,671

6,690

5,346

5,324

8,867

11,770

15,837

16,479

16,305

36,720

40,835

35,115

38,010

45,218

–

22,570

–

–

(40)

152

(35)

(133)

(164)

40,987

57,650

37,877

45,054

(3,685)

(21,151)

(113)

–

4,578

19,836

57,537

37,877

49,632

6,650

1,756

38,436
34,751

Gross rental
The total gross income for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 comprises rental income of RM72,355,523
(2019: RM78,734,487), interest income of RM59,751 (2019: RM60,185) and other income of RM277,415 (2019: RM237,339).
Total gross income for the financial year was 8.02% lower than the previous financial year.
The decrease was due to the rental rebates given to eligible tenants. Apart from the rental rebates given, gross
rental also drop due to lower occupancy.
Property operating expenses
The property operating expenses decreased by 1.44% to RM20.5 million for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
compared to RM20.8 million in the previous year. The decrease is due to the reduction in electricity consumption
and lower repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the MCO period.
The summary of our gross rental, property operating expenses and net rental income for each property in the
property portfolio for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 is detailed below:

Properties
UOA Centre Parcels
UOA II Parcels
UOA Damansara Parcels
Wisma UOA Damansara II
Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar
UOA Corporate Tower (Acquisition completed on 30 December 2020)
Total

Gross
Rental
(RM’000)
5,735
18,150
9,472
15,529
23,266
204
72,356

Property
Operating
Expenses
(RM’000)
1,895
4,972
2,911
2,424
5,932
20
18,154

Net Rental
Income
(RM’000)
3,840
13,178
6,561
13,105
17,334
184
54,202
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (Continued)
1)

Overall Financial Results (continued)
Non-property operating expenses
Total non-property operating expenses decreased to RM15.5 million from RM17.4 million in previous financial
year was due primarily to lower borrowing costs resulted from the lower interest rate in current financial year.
Income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported an income of RM34,750,875 (2019: RM19,836,187). The
income after tax included the deferred tax liability for real property gain tax for UOA REIT’s investment properties.
The provision of the deferred tax will not affect the realised income of the Group. Realised income after tax for the
financial year was RM36,719,912 (2019: RM39,540,726), which was a decrease of 7.13% over the previous financial
year mainly due to rental rebates given to eligible tenants as well as lower overall occupancy rates.

2)

Income Distribution
The Trust had on 28 August 2020 paid an interim distribution of 3.98 sen per unit totaling RM16,830,296 for the
six months ended 30 June 2020.
The Manager had on 10 December 2020, recommended to the Trustee, and the Trustee had on 10 December
2020, approved the final income distribution of 4.46 sen per unit totaling RM18,860,081 for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 to be paid by 22 January 2021 (“Final Distribution”). The Final Distribution comprises
taxable income of approximately 4.46 sen per unit.
The total distribution for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 is 8.44 sen per unit, a decrease of approximately
7.35% or 0.67 sen per unit as compared to the previous financial year. Distribution per unit of 8.44 sen translates
to a distribution yield of 7.47% (2019: 7.41%) based on the group’s closing unit price of RM1.13 (2019: RM1.23) as at
31 December 2020.
An analysis of the Trust’s income distribution is as follows:
As at 31
December
2020

As at 31
December
2019

As at 31
December
2018

As at 31
December
2017

As at 31
December
2016

3.98

4.24

4.04

4.18

5.22

Distribution per unit (sen)
- interim
- final

4.46

4.87

5.09

4.37

5.26

8.44

9.11

9.13

8.55

10.48

28/8/2020

30/8/2019

30/8/2018

30/8/2017

30/8/2016

22/1/2021

28/2/2020

28/2/2019

28/2/2018

28/2/2017

Distribution yield based on issued
price of RM1.15 per unit (%)

7.34

7.92

7.94

7.43

9.11

Distribution yield based on market
price at 31 December (%)

7.47

7.41

6.97

5.28

5.95

1.23

1.31

1.62

1.76

- total
Distribution payment date
- interim
- final

Market price as at 31 December (RM)

1.13
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (Continued)
3)

Gearing
Pursuant to the REIT Guidelines, the permitted limit on gearing ratio of real estate investment trusts is 50%.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has total borrowings of RM704,022,500 representing a gearing ratio of 39.9%
(2019: 26.3%). The debts are in the form of revolving credits and are short term in nature renewable on a one
(1) to six (6) months term at interest/profit rates as disclosed in Note 14 to the Financial Statements. Total credit
facilities available to the Trust amount to RM856,800,000 and there are unutilised facilities of RM152,777,500
as at the end of the financial year.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has the capacity to raise its borrowings by an additional RM25,119,754 before
reaching the 50% limit permitted under the REIT Guidelines.

4)

Units In Issue
As at 31
December
2020

Number of units in issue

675,599,076

As at 31
December
2019

As at 31
December
2018

As at 31
December
2017

As at 31
December
2016

422,871,776

422,871,776

422,871,776

422,871,776

The trust had on 28 December 2020 issued 252,727,300 additional new units at an issue price of RM1.10 per
unit pursuant to the acquisition of UOA Corporate Tower. As a result, the fund size increase from 422,871,776 to
675,599,076 units during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
5)

Net Asset Value (“NAV”) Of The Group
As at 31
December
2020
NAV (RM’000)

980,299

As at 31
December
2019

As at 31
December
2018

As at 31
December
2017

As at 31
December
2016

706,555

725,242

706,314

704,591

1.720

1.766

1.714

1.719

1.671

1.715

1.670

1.666

NAV per unit
- before distribution (RM)
- after distribution (RM) *

1.479

1.451

* 	NAV per unit is posted on Bursa Malaysia’s website on a quarterly basis.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s NAV has decreased from 1.6708 to 1.4510. This was mainly due to the increase
in fund size pursuant to the acquisition of UOA Corporate Tower.
Based on the group's closing unit price of RM1.13, the REIT is trading at approximately 24% below its NAV.
6)

Cash Flow
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has cash and bank balances of RM1.7 million and deposits with licensed
financial institution of RM3.7 million.
Based on the Statement of Cash Flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has generated
net cash from operating activities of RM45.4 million (before the payment of interest expenses of RM8.8 million)
and utilised cash for investing activities amounting to RM700.3 million primarily for acquisition of UOA Corporate
Tower. The net cash from financing activities by the Group of RM657.7 million was mainly due to the acquisition
of UOA Corporate Tower during the financial year.
On a net basis, the Group has a net increase of cash and cash equivalent of RM2.8 million for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020, which increase the cash and cash equivalent to RM5.4 million as at 31 December 2020.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Rental Income
GROSS RENTAL

UOA
Centre
Parcels

UOA
Damansara
Parcels
2019

0%

8%

15.53

Wisma
UOA
Damansara II

Parcel B Menara UOA
Bangsar

0.20

10.01
UOA
II
Parcels

0.00

0

5.73

5

6.15

10

16.34

15

9.47

20.18

20

18.15

26.06

25

23.27

30

RM (million)

1)

UOA
Corporate
Tower*

2020

UOA Centre Parcels
25%

32%

UOA II Parcels
UOA Damansara Parcels
Wisma UOA Damansara II
Parcel B - Menara UOA Bangsar

22%

13%

UOA Corporate Tower*

*Acquisition completed on 30 December 2020

For financial year ended 2020, the top three highest income generating properties are Parcel B – Menara UOA
Bangsar, UOA II Parcels and Wisma UOA Damansara II. These three building accounts for close to 80% of total
gross income rental.
Compared to the preceding year, gross rental income for all the Properties saw a decline. The reason for that
is due to the rental rebates given to eligible tenants. Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar and UOA II Parcels saw
a higher dip in income due to the departure of tenants that occupied a substantial area. We expect to see an
increase in rental income in the coming financial year with the newly acquired UOA Corporate Tower.
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REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
2)

Occupancy Rates

94.0%

92.7%

99.3%

87.7%

85.0%

95.7%

78.1%

81.9%

78.3%

81.4%

100.0%

99.3%

OCCUPANCY RATES OF PROPERTIES IN THE PORTFOLIO

0.0%

0.00

50.0%

UOA
Centre
Parcels

UOA
II
Parcels

UOA
Damansara
Parcels
2019

Wisma
Parcel B UOA
Menara UOA
Damansara II
Bangsar

UOA
Corporate
Tower*

2020

*Acquisition completed on 30 December 2020

Including all secured tenancies, there was a decline in the occupancy rate of the Properties in the portfolio giving
an average occupancy rate of close to 88% as at 31 December 2020.
In financial year 2020, departure of multiple tenants saw an overall decline in the occupancy rates of the Properties
in the portfolio. Wisma UOA Damansara II and UOA Damansara Parcels were the two properties that recorded
a higher decline in occupancy.
The weighted average lease expiry (“WALE”) of the portfolio, including all secured tenancies, as at 31 December
2020 was approximately 1.47 years. The WALE is within expectation as all rental of Properties in the portfolio are
typically executed via tenancy agreement. Hence, the Manager actively monitors all tenancy expiries to optimise
renewal.
3)	Asset Enhancement Initiatives
Asset Enhancement Initiative (“AEI”) plays a very important part of UOA REIT’s operating strategies. The maintenance
and upgrading of the Properties within our portfolio are essential to prolong the life of the assets and ensuring
the condition of the property is tenantable to remain competitive.
During the financial year 2020, the construction of the covered pedestrian bridge that links UOA II directly into
the existing KLCC-Bukit Bintang Walkway was completed. The retail area of UOA II that connects the pedestrian
bridge was also upgraded and the Manager is in the process of getting new tenants to occupy the space.
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4)	Funding Management
The Group adopts an active capital management strategy that is within the threshold as stipulated by the REIT
guideline. In this financial year, the gearing ratio has increase to 40%. The increase is due to the acquisition of
UOA Corporate Tower.
The current funding is sourced through revolving credit with a combination of floating and fixed interest rate. The
effective cost of borrowings that ranges between 2.63% and 4.10%. With the cut in OPR rate, we took advantage
of the low interest rate and secured part of our borrowings in fixed rate. Given the combination of floating and
fixed rate borrowings, the interest risk is minimal as the market does not expect interest rate to be volatile in the
near future.
MOVING FORWARD
With the current pandemic situation that affected the world, there are uncertainties in both the domestic and global
economies. An uncertainty in the economic situation will continue to weigh on the rental and occupancy rates of our
Properties. However, the Manager will continuously manage the Properties within the portfolio with prudent capital
management to maximise yields and returns.
The Manager will maintain its active capital management strategy and continue to explore potential yield-accretive
acquisitions that meets the objectives of UOA REIT.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION
UOA Real Estate Investment Trust (“UOA REIT”) is a Malaysiabased unit trust established with the objective to own
and invest in real estate and real estate-related assets
used, or predominantly used, for commercial purposes,
whether directly or indirectly through the ownership of
single-purpose companies who wholly own real estate.
UOA REIT, together with the UOA Group of companies
(“UOA”), is committed to creating a positive and enduring
social impact through our sustainability initiatives that
support our business, the environment and the communities
in which we operate. Our approach to sustainability is defined
by UOA’s corporate philosophy of building excellence with
a definitive focus on the areas of education, environment
and community activities.
The scope of the report covers the economic, environment
and social performance of UOA REIT’s properties in Malaysia
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (“FYE2020”),
with 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (“FYE2019”) being
the year of comparison, where applicable. In view that the
Trust does not have any employees, information reported
in relation to employees are referred to the employees
of the Manager. The Manager will continue reporting its
sustainability performance on an annual basis.
Menara UOA Bangsar

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
UOA REIT’s sustainability strategy is overseen by the Board
based on the following governance structure:
BOARD

To better understand the requirements for Sustainability
reporting, the management team has attended several
workshops and conducted meetings on sustainability with
the heads of departments.

CEO

RISK MANAGEMENT &
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

ACCOUNTANT

The Risk Management & Sustainability Committee (“RMC”),
chaired by the CEO, is responsible for the formulation of
sustainability policies and implementation of sustainability
initiatives while the financial and day-to-day business
operations will be undertaken by the accountant and
property manager respectively.

PROPERTY MANAGER
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
The table below illustrates UOA REIT’s outreach efforts to
its various stakeholder groups in 2020.

which reflect significant economic, environmental and
social impact on our business. It is essential for gaining
a better understanding of the sustainability aspects that
are important to UOA REIT as we strive to align them
in our efforts to improve business practices, reduce
environmental impact and enhance livelihoods.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CHANNEL

FREQUENCY

Trustees

- Annual General Meeting
- Investor relation events

Yearly
On-going

MATERIAL ISSUES

Tenants

- UOA newsletter
- Tenants and office
building management
committee meetings

Yearly
On-going

Covid-19 Pandemic

Unitholders

- Annual General Meeting
- Interim financial reports
- Unitholders’ meeting
- Corporate announcements
- UOA newsletter

Yearly
Quarterly
On-going
On-going
Yearly

Employees

- Recruitment, training and
development programmes
- Staff appraisal
- Long service award
- Internship programme

On-going

Environment

Yearly
Yearly
On-going

Investors/
Fund
Providers

- Analyst briefings
- Regular meetings with
analysts, fund managers
and other investors

On-going
On-going

Regulatory
Authorities

- Regular meetings with
relevant authorities
- Attending talks and
conferences organised
by regulators

On going
On going

Since the commencement of the Movement Control
Order (“MCO”) in March 2020, we have implemented
the necessary preventive measures to mitigate the risk
of infection by conducting routine sanitisation and
disinfection works at all common areas of the buildings
on a weekly basis and deep cleaning of all high touch
point areas was carried out at regular intervals on a daily
basis. Operation hours of centralised ventilation system,
water features and all lightings at common areas were
adjusted accordingly to conserve energy.

2020 has been an unprecedented year due to the
unfortunate onset of the global Covid-19 pandemic,
which has adversely affected the local and global
financial markets. Uncertainties abound, and we have
instituted action plans to mitigate the impact of the
health and economic crisis.

Social

Industry
Peers

- Conferences
On-going
- Annual reports
Annually
- Membership associations Quarterly

We have heightened safety protocols in all our properties
in compliance with the Ministry of Health’s guidelines:

Local
Communities

- Community engagement
programmes
- Collaborations with NGOs
- Donations and financial
aid

On going

Media

- Press releases
- Regular updates and
engagement sessions

On-going
On-going

1)	Effective communication with tenants/visitors to
ensure implementation of the Standard Operating
Procedure (“SOP”);
2)	Check in via MySejahtera App for contact tracing, and
temperature scan at the lobbies of the buildings for
all tenants/visitors before entry;
3)	Strict adherence to social distancing;
4)	Mandatory usage of face mask by all tenants/visitors
before entering the buildings; and
5)	Provision of hand sanitiser at the main lobbies/lift
lobbies of the buildings.

On going
On going

MATERIAL ANALYSIS
In determining sustainability priorities, UOA REIT
continues to reach out to its stakeholders with the
purpose to identify and address key sustainability issues
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Continued)

The UOA Group has also formed a committee to
formulate the SOP within the Group. We have put in
place multiple preventive and control measures at our
workplace to limit exposure and curb the spread of
infection:
1)	Splitting employees into two teams with an
alternate arrangement of work from home and
work in the office;
2)	Ensure social distancing. Staggered shifts and lunch
breaks to avoid overcrowding at the lobby and lift
area;
3)	Provision of hand sanitiser at the lobby and
designated areas near the work stations; and
4)	Provision of complimentary 3-ply face mask to each
employee.
Governance
Guidelines and SOP from relevant authorities are
accordingly adhered and communication with
authorities including Securities Commissions Malaysia
to ensure timely disclosures to relevant parties.

ECONOMIC
Financial Sustainability
Our commitment to business excellence is underpinned
by an unwavering focus on strong corporate governance
and prudent financial management in the face of a
challenging market environment. As such, we will
continue our focus on the following areas:
–	provision of regular and stable income distributions
to Unitholders
–	ensure long-term growth in terms of Net Asset Value
(“NAV”)
–	improve the occupancy rates
–	continue to explore opportunities for potential yield
accretive acquisitions
UOA REIT owns a portfolio of 6 properties strategically
located in Malaysia and receives rental income from
the operation of these properties. These properties
generated revenue of RM72.4 million and net realised
income of RM36.7 million in the financial year ended
31 December 2020. Our value creation ensures that the
properties operate optimally to remain competitive
in the marketplace. For a more detailed review of our

financial performance, please refer to the Management
Discussion and Analysis section and Financial Statements
section of this Annual Report.
Product Investments
During the financial year, we have completed the
acquisition of UOA Corporate Tower (“UCT”) in line with
the acquisition strategy of UOA REIT to continuously
acquire and invest in properties that are able to
contribute to the long-term growth in UOA REIT’s DPU
and/or NAV per unit. The acquisition strategy includes
acquiring a property that is strategically located as well
as has a high occupancy rate and diverse tenant mix.
The rationales for the acquisition are as follows:
1)	UCT is located in a strategic location with
comprehensive building services and facilities;
2)	With the acquisition, UCT complements the existing
property portfolio of UOA REIT and lowers the average
building age of UOA REIT’s property portfolio from
approximately 19 years as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately 17 years;
3)	UCT has managed to achieve a relatively high
occupancy rate and the diverse tenant mix of
UCT improved cash flow stability by minimising
each tenant’s overall contribution to revenue and
therefore, minimising the effect that any individual
tenant’s default would have on UOA REIT; and
4)	Enhances the size of UOA REIT’s property portfolio
from RM1.0 billion as at 31 December 2019 to
RM1.7 billion after the acquisition.
Maintaining and upgrading the quality of UOA REIT’s
properties are essential to the success of the trust as
well as meeting the expectations of all stakeholders
and unitholders. The quality of the properties largely
determines the value and income generated.
As mentioned in the annual report 2019, the construction
of the covered pedestrian bridge that links UOA II
directly to the existing KLCC-Bukit Bintang Walkway was
completed in the financial year 2020 and funded solely
from the accumulated sinking fund.
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Regulatory Compliance
We integrate the compliance culture within our business
by observing legal, regulatory and internal regulations
as well as the observance of common standards and
rules of professional conduct. Our business activities are
conducted based on ethical and legal standards with
high levels of integrity in fostering a sense of responsibility
and trust with our stakeholders.
We also ensure that all sub-contractors/service providers
deliver their services in accordance to requirements and
adherence to appropriate evaluation process.
At UOA REIT, we also ensure our employees are kept upto-date on corporate policies such as the Whistleblowing
Policy.
The Whistleblowing Policy aims to encourage employees
and other stakeholder groups to disclose any improper
conduct that they have become aware of. Concerns can
be raised directly to the Independent Directors. The
Manager is committed to ensuring that all cases will
be treated in the strictest of confidence and promptly
investigated. There were zero cases reported in 2019 and
2020.
Non-compliance with this policy is classed as major
misconduct and the employee involved will be subjected
to disciplinary action, which may lead to dismissal.
UOA REIT has established an Anti-Bribery & Corruption
Policy which is published on its website in accordance
with the Guidelines on Adequate Procedures issued
pursuant to subsection (5) of Section 17A of the Malaysia
Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009 which came
into effect in June 2020. The said Policy has been and
will be disseminated to all the employees and other
stakeholders from time to time when necessary.
Please refer to the Statement of Corporate Governance,
Audit & Risk Management Committee Report, and
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of
this Annual Report for more details on compliance.

Online Lead Generation Campaign for UOA REIT Signature
Offices
As part of our digitalisation plan to progressively use more
technology to improve our business processes, operational
and cost efficiencies, we have implemented an online lead
generation campaign for UOA REIT signature offices to
diversify and complement our traditional marketing platform
(prints/classified advertisements). Our intention is to reach
and engage new leads via online channels such as Google,
Facebook and LinkedIn, while enhancing brand awareness
and interests in our office units.
The advantages of the online campaign include:
•	reduces cost and runs 24/7, whereby customers
can access our product information at their most
convenient time
•	target audiences based on demography
•	measure and track results in real-time, and adjust
our business plans to continuously improve results
•	data collection of prospects and web traffic allows
for better analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL
Continuous efforts have been put into managing UOA
REIT’s commercial buildings by Jordan Lee Jaafar, the
property manager of UOA REIT. Listed below are the key
areas which have contributed to the effective operation
and cost saving management of the buildings.
Energy
The building sector is one of the largest sources of
carbon emissions in the country. In view of global
climate change and Malaysia’s commitment to
reduce carbon emissions, we have taken initial steps
to implement new environmentally friendly systems
across our properties. While the trust and the property
managers do not have operational control over tenants’
electricity consumption, resources have been deployed
at the property-level to enhance the ecosystem of the
buildings, raise environmental awareness and foster
energy conservation.
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1. 	Implementation and monitoring of timer control/
photocell/motion sensor for the lighting system
i.	Lift Lobby – timer control for peak and non-peak
hours
ii.	Toilet/Staircase – installation of motion sensors
to control the lighting
iii.	Outdoor Area – photocell to control the outdoor
lighting
2.

I ntroduction of highly efficient equipment/fitting
i.	Car Park Area – replacement of conventional lighting
with LED lighting. The replacement of conventional
lighting with T5 tube at Menara UOA Bangsar car park
has led to a reduction in energy consumption and
subsequently contributed to the reduction of carbon
footprint
ii.	Corridor – replacement of conventional lighting
with LED lighting at the corridors at UOA Centre
and UOA II has led to monthly savings of more
than RM7,000
iii.	Chiller – replacement of aging air-cooled chiller
with high efficiency water-cooled chiller. The
installation was completed in December 2018.
The replacement has led to a 31% savings in total
energy consumption
iv.	Lifts – upgrading of existing lifts with high efficiency
motor and equipment with energy regeneration
system

3.

Improvements on the air-conditioning system
i.	To improve the Building Control System to
constantly monitor and optimise the Chiller Plant
Performance

Waste
We ensure that the wastes generated from our properties
are collected and disposed of responsibly in accordance
with legal requirements, to minimise the wastes sent to
landfills. We collaborate closely with our Property Managers
to identify responsible waste management practices that
would benefit both our stakeholders and the environmental
value of our properties.

Our green initiatives to reduce environmental waste have
and will continue to be implemented by creative recycling
of annual festive ornaments; reduction in paper usage
by e-mailing information instead of sending by mail; and
continuous evaluation of potential automation system in
order to identify areas of improvement to reduce energy cost.
During the year, we have implemented process enhancement
through e-billing and e-receipt. By sending rental invoices
and payment receipts via email to all our tenants, we
managed to save 34% of the printing costs and reduced
43% of the total paper consumption.
Water
We are also constantly seeking ways to reduce water
consumption. In UOA REIT properties, Rain Water Harvesting
Tanks are installed to facilitate landscape water consumption.
We also installed water-efficient technology such as the
self-closing taps in refurbished toilets to minimise water
wastage. Water consumption is monitored monthly to
detect any unusual usage or potential leakage. We also
conducted regular checks and replaced aging domestic
pipes to prevent pipe burst and reduce water wastage.
Responsible Consumption
We have also taken the initiative to promote responsible
consumption of resources within the management and
finance offices. Employees are encouraged to practise good
consumption habits such as minimising electricity use,
minimising printing and limiting the wastage of resources.
For example, employees are encourage to transform hardcopy
records into softcopy, to print double sided or on recycled
paper, when necessary.

SOCIAL
As a real estate investment trust, social sustainability
encompasses our tenants, the REIT Manager’s employees,
property manager’s employees and those who frequently
visit our buildings.
Customer Focus
We are committed to achieve the highest customer
satisfaction level by placing customers as a top priority.
We maintain a responsible and responsive Facilities
Management Programme with the objective of ensuring
efficiency and peace of mind for owners/tenants. Yearly
survey is conducted for our tenants on the services provided
and quality of the properties. Continuous improvements
on the quality of our buildings and services are carried out.
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We also undertake various measures to ensure the quality
of our buildings is maintained at all times. Whilst all our
buildings are equipped with firefighting services and security
systems, we also arrange for daily patrolling by our appointed
security personnel in order to ensure the safety of occupants
in our buildings. Our building management division has
adopted crisis management policies and procedures to
ensure annual testing, simulations and training for crisis
situations are conducted.
In addition, we organise fire drills regularly to ensure that our
tenants and other co-owners of our projects are familiar with
the evacuation process. We also ensure annual certification
of our elevators and escalators. Certified chargemen are
engaged to continuously assess the safety and maintenance
of our electrical wiring and installations. Asset Enhancement
Initiatives (“AEI”) including lifts upgrading are carried out
to ensure our buildings are kept in a good, tenantable and
competitive condition.
We also ensure that local tenants are given priority, whenever
it is practical to do so, as we consider it important to support
local businesses, their products and services, and to indirectly
have a positive impact on the local economy.
Managing Occupational Health & Safety And Security
As landlord of properties, we always make the safety of
tenants and occupiers of our properties a priority. We
are committed to minimising risks; ensuring safety; and
protecting the health of tenants, contractors, employees
and visitors who work in or visit the Fund’s properties. As
such, we have incorporated occupational safety and health
policies and guidelines into our daily business operations
with the aim to establish a positive safety culture with zero
tolerance of workplace injury.
We have fire drills annually, and all tenants are encouraged
to participate in fire drills in the respective buildings to
ensure their occupiers are familiar with escape routes in
the event of any emergency.

Promising Workplace
The Manager acknowledges that the employees are our
greatest assets. As an employer of choice, we are committed
to growing and nurturing our talent pool through various
channels, not only to help our employees reach their full
potential, but also to ensure our business growth and
sustainability.
•	Recruitment
We strive to formulate a people-centric human resource
approach to retain and recruit talents. This is reflected
in our conduct of employment, including recruitment,
hiring, compensation, training and promotion for all
employees, regardless of race, gender or age. We practise
non-discriminatory employment policy with conscious
effort in promoting inclusivity and diversity.
Diversity is essential to our business as an investment
fund as we require views and opinions from varying
groups to ensure that the Fund remains relevant in
the current economic environment. Hence, we strive
to ensure that all parties receive equal opportunities
and enjoy a conducive working environment.
•	Employee Breakdown
Currently, we have a gender distribution of 49% female
and 51% male, 61% of which being Bumiputera while
39% are non-bumiputera. This reflects that we offer
career advancement opportunities to deserving
employees based on their performance, regardless
of their gender or race.
A majority of our employees lies in the age group of
30-50 years. All employees are employed based on
talents and capabilities to ensure that our workforce
is culturally diverse and knowledgeable. Nevertheless,
15% of our employees lie within the age group of 30
and below. This shows that we also remain mindful
of hiring young talents to groom Malaysia’s younger
generation with skills that will not only benefit our
business and the economy but their employability
value as well.
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•	Training & Development
To facilitate the continuous development and
motivation of our employees, relevant internal and
external training programmes that tailor to different
divisions and individual employees were organised.
External courses comprising technical and non-technical
training workshops, seminars as well as conferences
amounted to a total of 229 hours by the employees.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

•	Minimising Turnover Rate
Our employee turnover rate was recorded at 29%
for the financial year ended 2020. We adhere to the
requirements of Malaysia’s Minimum Wages Order 2016
and assure our stakeholders that our business practices
will continue to comply with the Order throughout
our operations. Ensuring that our employees are fairly
compensated with remuneration packages that are
competitive within the domestic REIT industry is
an important factor that contributes to employee
satisfaction and talent retention.

In light of the Covid-19 pandemic, UOA donated RM300,000
to the ‘Star Frontliners Initiative’ through Star Foundation
- a fund to help provide the purchase of essential medical
supplies for hospitals and medical staff to battle the escalating
outbreak. The fundraising initiative was launched by Star
Foundation, the charitable arm of Star Media Group.

To achieve a good working culture and encourage
employee dedication, various employee benefits were
provided during the financial year 2020:
1)	Medical Benefits
a.	Outpatient Care covering employee, nonworking spouse and children below 21 years
old
b.	Group Hospitalisation & Surgical Insurance
Plan
c. Group Personal Accident Insurance Plan
2)	Statutory Contributions
a.	Employees Provident Fund (EPF)
b.	Employment Insurance System (EIS)
c.	Social Security Organisation (SOCSO)
3)
Marriage Gift & Baby Gift
4)	Staff Season Parking
5)	Awards (Long Service Award and Healthy Award)
6)	Annual Dinner
7)	Chinese New Year Ang Pow; and
8)	Early Release for Muslim employees during Ramadan

As a responsible corporate citizen, we give back to communities
wherever we operate through our multi-faceted approach
towards corporate social responsibility (“CSR”). UOA recognises
the importance of such engaging initiatives as they form
the basis of a caring community, thereby helping to shape
a better and more sustainable society.

Faced with this unprecedented crisis, many medical frontliners
are risking their lives to keep Malaysians safe due to a lack
of critical support and equipment. The contribution aimed
to accelerate efforts to provide them with the necessities
that they urgently need to fight this pandemic.
UOA also introduced a ‘Let Love Light Malaysia’ campaign
to pay tribute to the frontliners. The campaign was initiated
as a way of bringing people together and channel our
collective gratitude and support to the doctors, nurses,
care workers and medical teams for their selfless acts of
courage, dedication and service to the nation.
UOA’s three buildings in Bangsar South, namely VE Hotel
& Residence, Komune Living and Invito shined hearts of
hope in a show of solidarity to the unsung heroes. It was
a heartwarming gesture to lift their spirits during these
challenging times by sharing words of appreciation and
notes of encouragement. Submissions by members of the
public were made via social media with the official hashtag
#LetLoveLightMalaysia.
In addition, UOA also distributed 7,000 face masks to
families within the vulnerable communities in Kerinchi.
The CSR initiative was organised with the support of
ADRF Malaysia, a non-profit organisation, to provide the
underprivileged families with protection against the
possibility of Covid-19 infection. As the conditions around
the pandemic continue to evolve, we are committed
to do our part in helping the communities in need by
extending support to those affected by pandemicrelated circumstances.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of UOA Asset Management Sdn
Bhd (“Board”), being the Manager of UOA Real Estate
Investment Trust (“UOA REIT”) and its subsidiary (“Group”)
recognises the importance of good corporate governance
as they firmly believe that an effective corporate
governance culture is essential in the best interests of
the unitholders and is critical to the performance and
success of the Manager and subsequently the Group.
The Board follows the practices and policies of the
Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”) and the Main
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Listing Requirements”). The Board has also
adopted relevant principles and recommendations of
the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2017, where
applicable to the operations of the Group and is pleased
to provide a narrative statement on the Manager’s main
corporate governance practices and policies.

A.	THE MANAGER OF UOA REIT
The Manager has general powers of management
over the assets of the Group. Its primary role is to
set the strategic direction of the Group and manage
the assets and liabilities of the Group for the benefit
of its unitholders, to ensure that the operations
of the Group are conducted in a proper, diligent
and efficient manner within an appropriate risk
management framework; and to enhance value
returns to its unitholders.
The Manager’s primary functions and responsibilities
include:
•	Setting the strategic direction of the Group and
recommend to the Trustee on the acquisition,
divestment or enhancement of assets in
accordance with the Manager’s investment
strategy;
•	Formulating plans for equity and debt financing
for the Group’s capital requirements with the
objective of optimising the capital structure
and the cost of capital;
•	Ensuring proper recording of transactions
including the preparation of accounts, and
annual financial statements and reports;
•	Supervising the Property Manager who
performs the day-to-day property management
functions for the Group’s properties; and

•	Ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and
applicable provisions of the REIT Guidelines,
Listing Requirements and the trust deed
constituting UOA REIT dated 28 November
2005 (“Deed”).
UOA REIT is externally managed by the Manager and
it has no personnel of its own. The Manager appoints
experienced and well-qualified management
personnel to handle the day-to-day operations.
All Directors and employees of the Manager are
remunerated by the Manager and not by UOA REIT.
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd is the appointed
Manager of UOA REIT in accordance with the terms
of the Deed which outlines the circumstances under
which the Manager can be retired.
The Manager holds a Capital Markets Services
Licence as required under the Capital Markets and
Services Act 2007 to carry on the regulated activity of
fund management in relation to asset management
restricted to real estate investment trust activities.
The Manager is a member of the Securities Industry
Dispute Resolution Centre (SIDREC) pursuant to the
requirements in the Capital Markets and Services
(Dispute Resolution) Regulations 2010.

B.	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER
OF UOA REIT
Role of the Board
The Board is responsible for the oversight and
corporate governance of the Manager. The Board
sets the strategic direction, and oversees the proper
conduct of the Manager’s activities, identifies
principal risks and ensures the implementation
of systems to manage these risks. In addition,
the Board reviews key matters such as financial
results, investments, divestments and major capital
expenditure of the Group. In making decisions, the
Board considers the business outlook and other
factors affecting real estate investment trusts and
property sectors.
Appointment to the Board
All new nominations are assessed by the Directors
and the final decision of appointment lies with the
entire Board to ensure a balanced mix of experience
and expertise of members of the Board.
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B.	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGER OF UOA REIT (Continued)
Board Composition
The Board presently consists of five (5) members,
comprising one (1) Executive Director and four (4) NonExecutive Directors. Three (3) of the Non-Executive
Directors are independent. The Board composition
complies with provisions of the Listing Requirements
and the REIT Guidelines for at least one third (1/3) of the
Board to be independent.
The Board composition reflects a mix of suitably qualified
and experienced professionals in the fields of accountancy,
banking and finance, real estate development and
property management. This combination of different
professions and skills working together enables the
Board to effectively lead and govern the Manager and
the Group.
The Board is led by competent Independent Directors,
namely an Independent Non-Executive Chairman and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, who are highly
respected persons with extensive experience in various
fields and are able to provide sufficient guidance and
advice to the Audit and Risk Management Committee
and the Board. The Board is of the opinion that the
composition of the Board is adequate.
While the Board does not have female representation at
this juncture, senior positions of the Group, including the
Accountant and Compliance Officer are represented by
females. There is no preference with regards to ethnicity
and age. Appointments and promotions of all employees
are based on the same principles.
Clear Roles and Responsibilities
The positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) are held by separate persons.
The Chairman leads the Board to ensure that members
of the Board work together with the Manager in a
constructive manner to address strategies, business
operations, financial performance and risk management
issues. The Chairman also takes a lead role in promoting
high standards of corporate governance with the full
support of the Board and the Manager.
The CEO is responsible for implementing the policies
and decisions of the Board. The CEO also has full
executive responsibilities over the business directions
and operational decisions in managing UOA REIT.

The clear separation of roles of the Chairman and the
CEO provides a healthy, independent and professional
relationship between the Board and the management.
The Board is assisted by a qualified and competent
Company Secretary and a Compliance Officer to provide
sound governance advice and ensure adherence to rules
and procedures.
Independence and Time Commitment
The Board receives annual written confirmation from the
Independent Directors confirming their independence
and in which the Directors acknowledge their respective
positions. All the Directors are able to devote sufficient
time and attention to the operations of UOA REIT and
to update themselves with knowledge and skills by
attending seminars and training. The Directors are also
accessible by email and telecommunication should the
need arises.
Corporate Code of Conduct and Whistle Blowing
Policy
The Manager has in place procedures to provide its
employees with defined and accessible channels to report
on suspected fraud, corruption, dishonest practices or
other similar matters relating to the Group and/or the
Manager, and for the independent investigation of any
reports by employees and appropriate follow up action.
The aim of the whistle blowing policy is to encourage
the reporting of such matters in good faith, with the
confidence that employees making such reports will be
treated fairly, and to the extent possible, be protected
from reprisal.
The Manager has developed a Whistle Blowing Policy for
the public to have access to the Independent Directors
and Chairman of the Board.
United Overseas Australia Ltd (“UOA Ltd”), the ultimate
holding company of the Manager had established a
Code of Conduct which set out the standards which
directors, officers, managers, employees and consultants
of UOA Ltd and its subsidiaries are expected to comply
in relation to the affairs of their businesses.
Pursuant to the Guidelines on Adequate Procedures
issued pursuant to subsection (5) of Section 17A of the
Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009 (Act
694) (“MACC Act 2009”) which comes into effect in June
2020, the Manager has established its Anti-Bribery and
Corruption Policy which is published on its website.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER OF UOA REIT (Continued)
Corporate Social Responsibility
The UOA Ltd Group continuously carries out corporate social responsibility initiatives in the areas of education,
environment and community activities.
Board Meetings
The Board meets to discuss and review the Manager’s operations and the financial performance of the Group and
meetings are held at least once every quarter (or more often if necessary). The Board is provided in advance with
the agenda together with reports and supporting documents relevant to the Board Meeting. The proceedings
of the Board Meetings are duly minuted and signed by the Chairman of the meeting. The Board met seven (7)
times during the financial year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance record of the Board is as follows:Total Board
Meetings
attended

Directors

Percentage
of
attendance

Alan Charles Winduss

7/7

100%

Kong Sze Choon

7/7

100%

Kung Beng Hong

7/7

100%

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

7/7

100%

Yap Kang Beng

7/7

100%

All the Directors have complied with the Listing Requirements by having attended more than fifty percent of
the number of Board Meetings held.
All the Directors have access to the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the internal auditors, the Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer, as well as to independent professional consultants for advice if and when
necessary.
Directors’ Fees
The remuneration paid by the Manager to its Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:
Fees
RM

Salaries
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

-

460,800

76,737

537,537

144,000

-

-

144,000

Executive
Director

NonExecutive
Directors

50,000 and below

-

3

50,001 to 100,000

-

-

100,001 to 150,000

-

-

150,001 and above

1

-

Executive Director
Non-Executive Directors

Range of Remuneration Per Annum (RM)
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B.	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGER OF UOA REIT (Continued)
Directors’ Training
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Directors have attended training and seminars as
follows:
Directors

Training and seminars attended

Alan Charles
Winduss

1)	ASX-KPMG financial disclosures
related to climate changes
2)	Webinar GT Malaysia – Transfer
pricing in Malaysia NAB Webinar
– The economic effect of falling
interest rates
3)	ASW continuous compliance
updates in-house – monthly
taxation briefings and updates

Kong Sze
Choon

1)	What is 5G?
2)	How 5G going to change the
world?
3)	Get ready for the current global
financial crisis
4)	COVID-19 Pandemic: The black
swan theory & butterfly effect
on world economy
5)	Tax Budget Briefing

Kung Beng
Hong

1)	Tax Budget Briefing

Dato’ Gan
Boon Khuay

1)	Tax Budget Briefing

Yap Kang
Beng

1)	Tax Budget Briefing

C.	DUE DILIGENCE COMMITTEE
The Due Diligence Committee (“DDC”) was
established by and operates under the delegated
authority of the Board. The DDC comprises one (1)
Independent Director, one (1) Non-Independent
Director and one (1) management representative.
The DDC’s role is to perform appropriate due
diligence work on any proposed investment or
divestment and make recommendations to the
Board.

D.	AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board has adopted the best practices in
corporate governance by establishing an Audit
and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) and
implemented an Internal Audit Function. The Board
is committed to maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control in order to safeguard the
interests of the unitholders of UOA REIT and the
investments and assets of the Group.
Key Functions and Responsibilities, and Summary
of Activities of the ARMC during the Year
The detailed ARMC Report including the key
functions and responsibilities, and the summary
activities of the ARMC are more specifically set out
in the ARMC Report in this Annual Report.

E.	INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT
The Internal Audit Function is undertaken by the
internal auditors of UOA Ltd and is independent
of Management. The ARMC meets with the
internal auditors at its quarterly meetings. A Risk
Management Policy has been adopted by the Board
to mitigate risks of the Group. Further details are
set out in the Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control.
The ARMC reviews related party transactions at
its quarterly meetings and whenever deemed
necessary. A Related Party Transaction Policy has
been adopted to enable the ARMC to review and
deliberate on such transactions appropriately.
Suitable recommendations are presented to the
Board for approval.
The ARMC ensures that financial statements comply
with the applicable financial reporting standards
and meet with the external auditors at least two
(2) times a year to ensure that such standards
are in place. The external auditors confirm their
independence to the ARMC at the meeting where
they table the audit findings to the ARMC.
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F.	ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ Responsibility Statement for Preparing
the Annual Audited Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the
financial statements of the Group are drawn up in
accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards, REIT Guidelines and the Deed. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have selected and applied consistently suitable
accounting policies and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
Timely Disclosures
The Board ensures timely disclosure of transactions
and other necessary disclosures by having in place
various checklists prepared in accordance with
regulatory requirements and disseminated to the
relevant departments to enable disclosures to be
made on a timely basis.

Relationship with Auditors
The appointment of the external auditors,
nominated by the Manager, is approved by the
Trustee (“Auditors”). The Auditors are independent
of the Manager and the Trustee. The remuneration
of the Auditors is approved by the Trustee. While
there is no specific policy on the assessment of the
Auditors, the Board reviews and approves the reappointment of the Auditors on a yearly basis.
Communication with Unitholders and Dissemination
of Information
The Board acknowledges the importance of regular
communication with unitholders and the investing
community to ensure that they are well informed
of the activities and performance of the Group.
The communication channels include UOA REIT’s
website, quarterly reports, annual reports, circulars,
various disclosures and announcements on Bursa
Malaysia’s website, and at general meeting of
unitholders.
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Audit & Risk Management Committee Report

INTRODUCTION
The Board of Directors (“Board”) has adopted the best
practices in corporate governance by establishing an
Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) and
implemented an Internal Audit Function. The Board is
committed to maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control in order to safeguard the interests
of the unitholders of UOA REIT and the investments
and assets of the Group. The ARMC provides assistance
to the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, internal
control structure, related party transactions and external
and internal audit functions. The ARMC may invite any
of the key management or employees to participate in
its meetings and to appoint any relevant consultants or
professionals to assist it to discharge its functions.

COMPOSITION
The ARMC consists of following three (3) Independent
Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Kung Beng Hong   - Independent Non-Executive
Director/Chairman of the
ARMC
Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay - Independent Non-Executive
Director
Alan Charles Winduss
- Independent Non-Executive
Director

SUMMARY OF TERMS OF REFERENCE
1.	Composition
The ARMC is appointed by the Board from among
its members. The appointment and composition
of the ARMC is determined based on the following
principles:
•	Comprises at least three (3) members;
•	All members must be Non-Executive Directors
with a majority of them being independent
directors;
•	At least one (1) member must be a member
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants or
a member of an accounting association as
specified in Part II of the First Schedule of the
Accountants Act, 1967; and
•	The Chairman must be an Independent
Director.

The ARMC consists of three (3) Independent NonExecutive Directors:
•	Mr. Kung Beng Hong (Chairman/Independent
and Non-Executive Director);
•	Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay (Independent and NonExecutive Director); and
•	Mr. Alan Charles Winduss (Independent and
Non-Executive Director).
The Terms of Reference of the ARMC is published on
our website.
2.	Key Functions and Responsibilities, and Summary
of Activities of the ARMC during the Year
The key functions and responsibilities of the ARMC
are:
•	To review together with the internal auditors, their
internal audit plans and internal audit reports,
and to evaluate major findings of these reports
and management’s responses to these findings;
•	To review the adequacy of the scopes, functions,
competencies and resources of the internal audit
function and to ensure that it has the necessary
authority to carry out its work;
•	To direct the internal auditors to any specific area
or procedure for audit if necessary;
•	To review the internal auditor’s report on risk
management so as to evaluate key risks that would
have significant impact on the Group’s business
and the measures taken to mitigate such risks;
•	To recommend to the Board any matters relating to
the appointment of external auditors, the fees and
any matters in relation to resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors;
•	To review together with the external auditors,
the audit plan and scope of their audit and upon
completion of the audit assessment, to present
the audit findings and recommendation of the
external auditors to the Board;
•	To assess the suitability and independence of
the external auditors. The ARMC reviews the
independence of the external auditors at the
meeting where the external auditors confirm
their independence when they table their audit
findings to the ARMC;
•	To discuss problems and reservations arising from
the internal audit, statutory audit, and matters
that the internal and/or external auditors may wish
to discuss (in the absence of the management
where appropriate);
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•	To review the quarterly results and year-end financial
statements prior to the approval by the Board;
•	To review financial statements with focus on
significant matters highlighted including financial
reporting issues, significant judgement made
by management, and significant and unusual
events or transactions, and how these matters
are addressed;
•	To monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the
Manager’s internal control systems and the internal/
external auditors’ evaluation on these systems;
•	To monitor the procedures established to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and applicable
provisions of the REIT Guidelines, Listing
Requirements and the Deed;
•	To review related party transactions and any conflict
of interest situations that may arise within the
Manager and/or the Group; and
•	To perform any other functions as directed by
the Board.
3.

Frequency and Attendance of Meetings
A minimum of four (4) meetings a year shall be
planned and any additional meetings will be on
a need basis. The ARMC meets with the External
Auditors without Executive Board members present
at least twice a year. The ARMC meets regularly,
with due notice of issues to be discussed, and
record its conclusions and then report to the full
Board as and when necessary. The Chairman of the
ARMC engages on a continuous basis with Senior
Management, the Accountant, the Internal Auditors
and the External Auditors in order to keep abreast of
matters affecting the Group. Other Board members
and employees may attend any particular ARMC
meeting only upon the invitation of the ARMC
specific to a relevant meeting.
The ARMC met seven (7) times during the financial
year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance
record of the ARMC are as follows:
Directors

Total
meetings
attended

Percentage
of
attendance

Kung Beng Hong

7/7

100%

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

7/7

100%

Alan Charles Winduss

7/7

100%

Summary of Activities of the ARMC during the
Year
Functions and responsibilities performed by the
ARMC during the financial year ended 31 December
2020 include the following:
•	Reviewed the external auditors’ Audit Planning
Memorandum, audit approach and reporting
requirement prior to the commence of audit
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020;
•	Reviewed the external auditors’ Audit
Progression
Memorandum
and
Audit
Completion Memorandum for the audit for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and discussed
on key audit areas and any significant audit
findings;
•	Reviewed the results of risk management
activities;
•	Reviewed the status of accounts receivable
position and tenant management function
with the internal auditors;
•	Reviewed
the
functions
of
property
maintenance, contract maintenance and
payment function with the internal auditors:
•	Reviewed the quarterly results for all the
financial quarters and year-end;
•	Reviewed and approved the reports and
statements for the Annual Report 2020;
•	Reviewed the function of financial management
with the internal auditors;
•	Reviewed the compliance in relation to related
party transaction; and
•	Reviewed with the internal auditors, and
approved the annual audit plan for the year
ending 31 December 2021.
Access to and Supply of Information
The ARMC is entitled to full access to and cooperation of the management and internal auditors.
Other Board members and employees may attend
any particular ARMC meeting upon invitation by
the ARMC. The ARMC has full access to reasonable
resources to enable it to discharge its functions
properly.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd
(“Board”), being the Manager of UOA Real Estate Investment
Trust (“UOA REIT”) and its subsidiary (“Group”) is committed
to nurture and preserve an effective and sound system of
internal control to safeguard the interests of the unitholders
of UOA REIT as well as the investments and assets of the
Group. In this commitment, the Board has adopted the
best practices in corporate governance by establishing
an Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”)
and setting up an Internal Audit Function, undertaken
by the Internal Auditors of United Overseas Australia Ltd
to comply with Paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Main Market
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The Board is pleased to provide a statement on the state of
the Manager’s internal controls for inclusion in this Annual
Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
Internal Audit Function
The internal audit function is undertaken by the Internal
Audit Department of the ultimate holding company of
the Manager, United Overseas Australia Ltd. The ARMC
has an oversight function of all activities carried out by
the internal auditors in respect of the Group.
The principal role of the internal auditors is to independently
review the risk exposures and control processes
implemented by the Manager and conduct assignments
which encompass auditing and review of critical areas,
report on the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of
the operations and internal control and highlight the
significant findings in respect of non-compliance within
the Group to the ARMC.
The Internal Audit Department function is guided by the
Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional
Practices Framework (“IPPF”). The internal audit framework
is designed to be in line with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”)
Internal Control – Integrated Framework. The Internal Audit
Department reports directly to the ARMC.
The internal auditors engage in regular communication with
the senior management team and various departments
within the organisation in relation to its internal audit
activities and efforts for continuous improvement in
operations and systems.
Internal audit reports which include details of activities
planned, audit findings and recommendations are tabled
at quarterly ARMC meetings.

A summary of internal audit activities that were undertaken
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are
as follows:
•	Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management framework;
•	Reviewed the billing and collection process, follow up
on long outstanding debt, process of pre-qualification
and assessment of potential tenants and compliance
with tenancy agreement;
•	Reviewed the process of property maintenance,
contract maintenance, payment to contractors and
contractors performance evaluation;
•	Reviewed the financial management processes of
the Group to ensure efficiency and effectiveness of
the processes. These include the treasury, payment
to suppliers, insurance coverage, investment property
evaluation and accounting system; and
•	Reviewed the related party transactions entered into
by the Group and companies related to the Manager.
The professionalism and competency of internal auditors
are being emphasized through continuous training, regular
performance evaluation by the ARMC and professional
certification attained. As at year ended 31 December 2020,
Internal Audit Department comprises of 3 internal auditors.
The head of Internal Audit Department is a Certified Internal
Auditor and member of The Institute of Internal Auditors
Malaysia. All internal audit personnel are free from any
relationship or conflicts of interest, which could impair
their objectivity and independence.
Key Elements of Internal Control
The Board assumes its responsibility to maintain a
sound and effective system of internal control and risk
management practices within the Manager in order to
meet business objectives. The Board acknowledges that
the system provides reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement of management and
financial information or against financial losses or fraud.
Therefore, the Board ensures the effectiveness of the system
through regular reviews.
The Board has appointed the ARMC to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control. The
ARMC assisted by the Internal Audit Function, provides
the Board with the assurance it requires on the adequacy
and integrity of the system of internal control.
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The current system of internal control has within it, the
following key elements:
•	There is an operations manual which provides an
overview of the Manager’s responsibilities in relation to
management of the Group. This operations manual is
a guide to daily activities and operations of the Group
and is subjected to periodic review and updates;
•	Financial authority limit delegated to management
is defined and approved by the Board;
•	Quarterly management reporting on the performance
of the Group is presented to the Board;
•	Operational structure is well defined with adequate
segregation of duties to ensure check and balance on
jobs, and delegation of authorities and responsibilities;
•	Human resource policy & procedure and related
human resource matters are communicated to
staffs via memo, employee handbook which are also
available on the internal information portal.
•	Establishment of an Internal Audit Function which
carries out internal audit review according to risk
based audit plan approved by the ARMC. The internal
auditors tabled the results of their review with
recommendations and follow up actions to the ARMC
on quarterly basis;
•	Adequate insurance coverage in respect of insurable
risk, including investment properties, to appropriate
levels, which are determined upon consultation with
relevant professionals;
•	On-going training and educational programme for
Directors and relevant staff in their respective areas
of duties in order for them to perform their functions
effectively;
•	Adoption of a Risk Management Policy to identify
key risks together with the appropriate measures
and controls to manage the aforesaid risks which are
then outlined in the Risk Register and subsequently
appraised by the ARMC; and
•	Adoption of a Related Party Transaction Policy to
ensure that related party transactions are undertaken
in compliance with the REIT Guidelines and the Trust
Deed, and are carried out on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms.
Non-compliance and internal control weaknesses
noted by the internal and external auditors and their
recommendations will be reported to the ARMC. To date,
there has been no identified non-compliance or internal
control weaknesses of a material nature.

Risk Management
The Board has established a sound risk management
framework which is currently being adopted by the
Manager that enables it to continuously identify, evaluate,
mitigate and monitor risks that affect the Group.
Responsibility for managing risk lies initially with the
business unit concerned, working within the overall strategy
outlined by the Board. Therefore, the Manager has formed
the Risk Management Working Committee (“RMWC”) which
encompasses key personnel from various departments
to identify potential risks, to assess the effectiveness of
existing controls and to develop mitigating measures to
manage significant risks.
With the assistance rendered by the internal auditors, the
RMWC has formulated and developed a Risk Management
Policy which was reviewed by the ARMC and approved
by the Board on 16 July 2013. In 2017, a revised Risk
Management Policy was tabled for review to ARMC and
approved by the Board on 21 November 2017. The revised
Risk Management Policy reflects the Group commitment
to implement a conclusive and updated risk management
framework for the Group. The Risk Management Policy
is aimed to:•	Provide objectives and principles in risk management
activities;
•	Establish responsibilities and accountability in risk
management;
•	Establish risk management structure and process;
and
•	Determine risk appetite in managing risks.
A Risk Register and Risk Heat Map are reviewed and
updated periodically by the RMWC and presented to the
ARMC on a yearly basis and when there are changes in
business environment that could give impact on the group
in achieving business objectives. During the financial year
under review, new risks were identified and previously
identified risks were revisited and reassessed on its rating
and effectiveness on its internal control in mitigating the
risk. The risk profiles were reviewed and assessed to ensure
that the risk exposures are updated and properly mitigated
to reflect the current economic environment and new
regulatory requirements which may impact the Group.
The review and assessment also ensure that risk exposures
do not beyond risk appetite.

39

40

UOA REIT

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The management has given assurance to the Board that
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is operating adequately and effectively, in all material
respects, based on the Group’s risk management and
internal control system.
Review of This Statement by External Auditors
The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December
2020. Their review was conducted in accordance with
Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information (“AAPG 3”), Guidance
for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement
on Risk Management and Internal Control included in
the Annual Report, issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA). AAPG 3 does not require the external
auditors to, and they did not, consider whether this
Statement covers all risks and controls, or to form an
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk and control procedures. AAPG 3 also does not require
the external auditors to consider whether the processes
described to deal with material internal control aspects

of any significant problems disclosed in the annual report
will, in fact, remedy the problems. Based on their review,
the external auditors have reported to the Board that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their
understanding of the process the Board has adopted in
the review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.
The Board’s Conclusion
The Board is of the view that the current system of internal
control is responsive and adequate to the business
environment of the Group. There was no material control
failure or weakness that would have any material adverse
effects on the results of the Group for the period under
review.
In addition, the Board is of the view that the Group will
maintain its business objective and operational efficiency
by continuous commitment towards a sound system of
internal control. The Board continues to take measures to
enhance the system of internal control.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

Material Contracts

Non-Audit Fees

There was no material contract entered into involving
directors’ and major unitholders’ interest which were
still subsisting as at the end of the financial year under
review or which were entered into since the end of the
previous financial year except as disclosed in Note 28 to
the financial statements.

Non-audit fees paid/payable to the external auditors of
the Trust and its subsidiary for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to RM3,000 and
RM60,000 in respect of services for the review of the
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
of the Trust and corporate exercise on the acquisition of
UOA Corporate Tower.
The provision of non-audit services by the external
auditors to the Group is both cost effective and efficient
due to their knowledge and understanding of the
operations of the Group, and did not compromise their
independence and objectivity.

DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
for the Audited Financial Statements

The Directors of the Manager (“The Directors”) are
required by the Companies Act 2016 to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which
have been made out in accordance with applicable
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”),
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the
Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”), the provisions
of the Deed dated 28 November 2005 (“Deed”), the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 and the Main
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
The Directors are responsible to ensure that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and the Trust at the end of the financial
year, and of the results and cash flows of the Group and
the Trust for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have:
•	Adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently;
•	Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and
•	Prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.
The Directors are responsible to ensure that the Group
and the Trust keep accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
Group and the Trust which enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2016. The Directors have taken reasonable steps to
detect and prevent fraud and other irregularities, and to
safeguard the assets of the Group and of the Trust.
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Manager’s Report

UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd, the Manager of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust (“UOA REIT” or “Trust”), has
pleasure in presenting the Manager’s Report on UOA REIT together with the audited financial statements of the
Group and of the Trust for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF MANAGER
The Manager, a company incorporated in Malaysia, is a subsidiary of UOA Corporation Berhad (a subsidiary of
UOA Holdings Sdn Bhd which in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Overseas Australia Ltd, a company
incorporated in Australia and listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Singapore). The
principal activity of the Manager is the management of real estate investment trusts. There has been no significant
change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE TRUST
UOA REIT is a Malaysia-domiciled real estate investment trust constituted under a Deed dated 28 November 2005
(“Deed”) by UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd (“Manager”) and RHB Trustees Berhad (“Trustee”).
UOA REIT commenced its operations on 1 December 2005 and was listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad on 30 December 2005. The principal activity of UOA REIT is to invest in a diversified portfolio of
real estate and real estate-related assets used, or predominantly used, for commercial purposes, whether directly
or indirectly through the ownership of single-purpose companies, who wholly own real estate with the objective of
achieving a stable return from rental income and long-term capital growth. There has been no significant change in
the nature of this activity during the financial year.
UOA REIT will continue its operations until such time as determined by the Trustee and the Manager as provided
under Clause 26 of the Deed.
The principal activity of the subsidiary company is disclosed in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.
CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
There was no change in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year under review.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGER (“DIRECTORS”)
Directors

Date of appointment

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

16 November 2005

Alan Charles Winduss

28 November 2005

Kung Beng Hong

28 November 2005

Kong Sze Choon
Yap Kang Beng

14 January 2011
18 March 2016
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Manager’s Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that financial year, did there exist any arrangement to
which UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd was a party, whereby Directors of the Manager might acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of units in or debentures of the Trust or any other body corporate.
During the financial year under review, no Director of the Manager has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit by reason of a contract made by UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd or a related corporation, with any director
or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company or a related corporation, in which he has a substantial
financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST
◀———————————————— Number of units ————————————————▶
As at
1 January
2020

Acquired

Disposed

As at
31 December
2020

Alan Charles Winduss

100,000

-

-

100,000

Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

100,000

-

-

100,000

Kung Beng Hong

100,000

-

-

100,000

39,000

-

-

39,000

24,000

-

-

24,000

Direct interest

Kong Sze Choon
Indirect interest
Kong Sze Choon *

* By virtue of his interest in the shares of Global Transact Sdn Bhd.
During and at the end of financial year, there was no material contract entered into involving any Directors and major
unitholders, except for any contracts arising from transactions disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.
SOFT COMMISSION
During the financial year, the Manager did not receive any soft commission from its broker, by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Group.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST
None of the Directors and employees of the Manager have any conflict of interest with the Group and the Trust.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:
(a)	to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the allowance for
doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts and all
known bad debts had been written off; and
(b)	to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business including
their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Trust have been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(a)	which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust inadequate to any substantial extent; or
(b)	which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Trust misleading; or
(c)	which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of
the Group and of the Trust misleading or inappropriate; or
(d)	not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the
financial statements misleading.
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(a)	any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Trust which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liability of any other person; or
(b)	any contingent liability of the Group and of the Trust which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
In the opinion of the Directors:
(a)	no contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Trust has become enforceable or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may
affect the ability of the Group and of the Trust to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;
(b)	the results of the operations of the Group and of the Trust during the financial year were not substantially
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and
(c)	there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of
the Group and of the Trust for the financial year in which this report is made.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
The events during the financial year and after the reporting date are disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.
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Manager’s Report (Continued)

MATERIAL LITIGATION
The Manager is not aware of any pending material litigation as at the date of statement of financial position and up
to the date of this report.
HOLDING COMPANY
The Directors regard United Overseas Australia Ltd, a company incorporated in Australia and listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Singapore as the ultimate holding company.
AUDITORS
The total amount of fees paid to or receivable by the Auditors, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT, as remuneration for their
services as auditors of the Group and of the Trust for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are amounted to
RM49,000 and RM45,000 respectively.
The Auditors, Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors.

For and on behalf of the Manager,
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd

KONG SZE CHOON
Director

ALAN CHARLES WINDUSS
Director

Kuala Lumpur
17 February 2021

Australia
17 February 2021
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STATEMENT BY MANAGER

We, Kong Sze Choon and Alan Charles Winduss, being two of the Directors of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd (“the
Manager”), do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 54 to 93 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Trust as at 31 December
2020 and financial performance and cash flows of the Group and of the Trust for the financial year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, Securities
Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts and the provisions of the Deed dated 28 November
2005.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors.

For and on behalf of the Manager,
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd

KONG SZE CHOON
Director

ALAN CHARLES WINDUSS
Director

Kuala Lumpur
17 February 2021

Australia
17 February 2021
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STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Kong Sze Choon, being the Director of UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd primarily responsible for the financial
management of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my
knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out on pages 54 to 93 are correct, and I make this solemn
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in the
Federal Territory this day of
17 February 2021

Before me:

Commissioner for Oaths

)
)
)
)_____________________________
     KONG SZE CHOON
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
UOA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(Established in Malaysia)

We have acted as Trustee of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust for the financial year ended 31 December 2020. In
our opinion and to the best of our knowledge, UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd, the Manager, has managed UOA
Real Estate Investment Trust (“Trust”) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment powers of the
Manager and the Trustee under the Deed dated 28 November 2005, other provisions of the Deed, the Capital Markets
and Services Act, 2007, the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts and other
applicable laws during the financial year then ended.
We have ensured that the procedures and processes employed by UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd to value and
price the units of the Trust are adequate and that such valuation/pricing is carried out in accordance with the Deed
and other regulatory requirements.
We also confirm that the income distributions declared and paid during the financial year ended 31 December 2020
are in line with and are reflective of the objectives of the Trust. Two distributions have been declared for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 as follows:
(a)

Interim income distribution of 3.98 sen per unit paid on 28 August 2020; and

(b) Final income distribution of 4.46 sen per unit paid on 22 January 2021.

For and on behalf of the Trustee,
RHB Trustees Berhad
(Registration No.: 200201005356 (573019-U))

TONY CHIENG SIONG UNG
DIRECTOR
Kuala Lumpur
17 February 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
UOA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(Established in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust (“UOA REIT” or “Trust”), which comprise
the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020 of the Group and of the Trust, and the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in net asset value and statements of cash
flows of the Group and of the Trust for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 54 to 93.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Trust as at 31 December 2020, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”)
and the provisions of the Deed dated 28 November 2005 (“Deed”).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Trust in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws
and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Trust for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of Investment Properties
As disclosed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements, the Group’s and the Trust’s investment properties that were
carried at fair value amounted to RM1,738,100,000 and RM1,731,100,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020.
The investment properties are stated at fair value based on independent professional valuation using the comparison
and income method. We focused on this due to the magnitude of the balance and the complexities in determining
the fair value of the investment properties, which involves significant judgement and estimation that could result in
material misstatement.
Audit responses
Our audit procedures performed include:
1.	Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity of the independent valuer.
2.	Performed site visits to major properties to inspect the condition of the properties and vacant units.
3.	Checked the accuracy and relevance of the input data used in the valuations.
4.	Evaluated and challenged the key assumptions used in the valuations.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust and our auditors’
report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements of the Group and of the Trust or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

51

52

UOA REIT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
UOA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(Established in Malaysia) (Continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Manager for the Financial Statements
The Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Trust that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”)
and the provisions of the Deed dated 28 November 2005 (“Deed”). The Manager is also responsible for such internal
control as the Manager determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of
the Trust that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust, the Manager is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either intends to liquidate the Group
or the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Trust as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
•	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
•	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and of the Trust’s internal control.
•

 valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
E
related disclosures made by the Manager.

•	Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with the approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also (continued):
•	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Trust, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
•	Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
We communicate with the Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide with the Manager with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Manager, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Trust for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matter
This report is made solely to the unitholders of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with the REIT Guidelines in Malaysia
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

GRANT THORNTON MALAYSIA PLT
(201906003682 & LLP0022494-LCA)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (AF 0737)
Kuala Lumpur
17 February 2021

LIM SOO SIM
(NO: 03335/11/2021 J)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
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UOA REIT

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

    Group

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Note

Plant and equipment

5

Investment properties

6

Investment in a subsidiary company

7

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade receivables

8

Other receivables

9

Amount owing by a subsidiary company

10

 Deposits with licensed financial institutions

11

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Other payables

12

Deferred tax liabilities

13

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Other payables

12

Bank borrowings

14

Provision for income distribution

15

Tax payable
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net asset value
UNITHOLDERS' FUND
Unitholders' capital

Undistributed income
Distribution to unitholders
Number of units in circulation
Net asset value

- Before income distribution
- After income distribution

Net asset value per unit

- Before income distribution
- After income distribution

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

424,470

239,913

424,470

239,913

1,738,100,000

1,036,240,241

1,738,524,470

1,036,480,154

2,525,954

1,215,604

-

16

-

17,375,854

6,521,194

3,700,000

1,000,000

25,315,038

10,345,515

-

1,713,230

Bank balances
Total current assets

    Trust

2020
RM

1,608,717

1,731,100,000

1,027,363,283

1,731,524,472

1,027,603,198

2,507,396

1,205,770

12,600,529

12,603,502

2

17,375,854
3,100,000
1,562,534

37,146,313

2

6,521,194
750,000
1,383,194
22,463,660

1,763,839,508

1,046,825,669

1,768,670,785

1,050,066,858

12,003,061

9,650,696

11,956,452

9,495,514

23,378,000

19,776,000

35,381,061

29,426,696

25,260,859

15,420,340

704,022,500

274,800,000

16,311

30,050

18,860,081

20,593,855

748,159,751

310,844,245

783,540,812

340,270,941

980,298,696

706,554,728

750,745,631

476,062,161

229,553,065

230,492,567

980,298,696

706,554,728

675,599,076

23,378,000

19,776,000

35,334,452

29,271,514

25,064,035

15,383,682

704,022,500

274,800,000

-

-

18,860,081

20,593,855

747,946,616

310,777,537

783,281,068

340,049,051

985,389,717

710,017,807

750,745,631

476,062,161

234,644,086

233,955,646

985,389,717

710,017,807

422,871,776

675,599,076

422,871,776

999,158,777

727,148,583
706,554,728

1,004,249,798

730,611,662

980,298,696

985,389,717

710,017,807

1.479

1.720

1.486

1.728

1.451

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

1.671

1.459

1.679
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

    Group

INCOME

Note

Gross rental

17

Property operating expenses

18

Net rental income
Interest income

EXPENSES

Manager's fees

19

Trustee's fee

20

Impairment losses of financial assets
21

Total expenses

- Unrealised

71,801,369

78,196,742

(20,456,415)

22

(20,756,236) (20,238,105) (20,545,530)

51,899,108

57,978,251

51,563,264

57,651,212

59,751

60,185

55,191

58,296

237,339

276,735

1,059,009

52,236,274

58,275,775

51,895,190

58,768,517

4,826,221

4,878,712

4,826,221

4,878,712

216,099

218,450

20,758

21,333

48,820
50,540

203,145

402,631

8,867,261

11,770,313

1,172,838

(40,232)

Income before tax

- Realised

78,734,487

1,756,195

 Net changes on financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Net income/Total comprehensive income
is made up as follows:

72,355,523

15,516,362

Fair value gain on investment properties

 Net income/Total comprehensive income
during the financial year

2019
RM

161,100

Valuation fees
Administration expenses

Tax expense

2020
RM

48,940

Auditors' remuneration
Tax agent's fees

Finance costs

2019
RM

277,415

Other income
Total income

    Trust

2020
RM

49,832
17,440,631
151,773

38,435,875

40,986,917

34,750,875

216,099

218,450

18,700

19,640

44,700

161,100

44,700
45,982

200,375

395,769

8,867,261

11,770,313

1,172,838

15,507,294
3,633,153

(40,232)

49,832
17,423,398
151,773

39,980,817

41,496,892

19,836,187

36,378,817

20,426,474

36,719,912

39,540,726

36,387,896

40,050,701

34,750,875

19,836,187

36,378,817

20,426,474

(3,685,000) (21,150,730)

(1,969,037) (19,704,539)

(3,602,000) (21,070,418)

(9,079) (19,624,227)
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

    Group

Earnings per unit

2020
RM

Note
23

    Trust

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

- After Manager's fees (sen)

8.16

4.69

8.55

4.83

- Before Manager's fees (sen)

9.30

5.84

9.68

5.98

- Interim distribution of 3.98 sen (2019:
 4.24 sen) paid on 28 August 2020
(2019: 30 August 2019)

16,830,296

17,929,763

16,830,296

17,929,763

- Proposed final distribution of 4.46 sen
 (2019: 4.87 sen) payable on 22 January
 2021 (2019: 28 February 2020)

18,860,081

20,593,855

18,860,081

20,593,855

35,690,377

38,523,618

35,690,377

38,523,618

- Gross (sen)

3.98

4.24

3.98

4.24

- Net (sen)

3.98***

4.24

3.98***

4.24

- Gross (sen)

4.46

4.87

4.46

4.87

- Net (sen) **

4.46***

4.87

4.46***

4.87

Net income distribution

Interim income distribution per unit *

Final income distribution per unit *

*

Based on 422,871,776 (2019: 422,871,776) units entitled to distribution.

** 	Approximately Nil (2019: Nil) out of the 4.46 sen (2019: 4.87 sen) final income distribution per unit is exempted
from income tax due to the utilisation of capital allowances from the investment properties of the Trust and
the interest income received from financial institutions pursuant to paragraph 35A, Schedule 6 of the Income
Tax Act, 1967.
*** 	Pursuant to the amended Section 6(1)(i) of the Income Tax Act, 1967, the following withholding tax rates as
stipulated in Part X, Schedule 1 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 will be deducted for distribution of income by the
Trust to the following categories of unitholders:
Withholding tax rate
Resident corporate
Resident non-corporate
Non-resident individual
Non-resident corporate
Non-resident institutional
# No withholding tax; to tax at prevailing tax rate

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

#

2020

2019

10%

10%

24%

24%

-

10%
10%

-

10%
10%
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET VALUE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Unitholders'
capital
RM

◀—————— Undistributed Income ——————▶
Realised
Unrealised
Sub-total
RM
RM
RM

476,062,161

51,833,683

197,346,315

249,179,998

725,242,159

-

39,540,726

(19,704,539)

19,836,187

19,836,187

-

(38,523,618)

-

(38,523,618)

(38,523,618)

476,062,161

52,850,791

177,641,776

230,492,567

706,554,728

Net income/(loss)/Total comprehensive
 income/(loss) for the financial year

-

36,719,912

(1,969,037)

34,750,875

34,750,875

Realisation upon disposal of
investment properties

-

453,090

(453,090)

-

-

278,000,030
(3,316,560)
274,683,470

(35,690,377)
(35,690,377)

-

Balance as at 31 December 2020

750,745,631

54,333,416

175,219,649

229,553,065

980,298,696

Trust
Balance as at 1 January 2019

476,062,161

56,709,780

195,343,010

252,052,790

728,114,951

-

40,050,701

(19,624,227)

20,426,474

20,426,474

-

(38,523,618)

-

(38,523,618)

(38,523,618)

476,062,161

58,236,863

175,718,783

233,955,646

710,017,807

Net income/(loss)/Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the financial year

-

36,387,896

(9,079)

36,378,817

36,378,817

Realisation upon disposal of
investment properties

-

310,483

(310,483)

-

-

Unitholders transactions:
- Issuance of units

278,000,030

-

-

-

278,000,030

- New units issuance expenses
- Distribution to unitholders
Total unitholders' transactions

(3,316,560)
274,683,470

(35,690,377)
(35,690,377)

-

750,745,631

59,244,865

175,399,221

Note
Group
Balance as at 1 January 2019
Net income/(loss)/Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the financial year
Unitholders’ transactions:
- Distribution to unitholders

15

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Unitholders' transactions:
- Issuance of units
- New units issuance expenses
- Distribution to unitholders
Total unitholders' transactions

15

Net income/(loss)/Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the financial year
Unitholders transactions:
- Distribution to unitholders

15

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Balance as at 31 December 2020

15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Total
RM

- 278,000,030
(3,316,560)
(35,690,377) (35,690,377)
(35,690,377) 238,993,093

(3,316,560)
(35,690,377) (35,690,377)
(35,690,377) 238,993,093
234,644,086

985,389,717
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

    Group

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before tax
Adjustments for:
Allowance for expected credit losses
Allowance for expected credit losses no longer required
 Bad debts written off
Depreciation
Fair value gain on investment properties
Loss on disposal of investment properties
Plant and equipment written off
Net changes on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
Interest income
Interest expense
Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Receivables
Payables
Cash generated from operating activities
Tax paid
Net cash from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment

Acquisition of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Enhancements to investment properties
Interest income
Repayment from a subsidiary company
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid
Proceed from issuance of units
New units issuance expenses
Distribution to unitholders
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Net changes

Brought forward
Carried forward

    Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

38,435,875

40,986,917

39,980,817

41,496,892

1,217,642

116,869

1,217,642

116,869

(44,804)

(67,037)

53,472

26,671

57

(1,756,195)

-   

1,351
-

1,149

2,763

40,232

(151,773)

(59,751)

8,867,261

46,754,938

(1,631,408)
369,164

(60,185)
11,770,313
52,625,889
1,940,265
109,560

45,492,694

54,675,714

45,395,955

54,573,679

(96,739)

(239,178)

(701,653,564)
1,550,000

-   

59,751
-

(700,282,991)

572,022,500

(142,800,000)

(8,790,270)

278,000,030

(3,316,560)

(102,035)

(167,055)
(1,140,241)
60,185
-

(44,804)

(67,037)

53,472

26,671

57

(3,633,153)

-   

2,763

40,232

(151,773)

(55,191)

8,867,261

46,427,482

(1,622,684)
317,571

-

(58,296)
11,770,313
52,314,711
1,935,583
(599,012)

45,122,369

53,651,282

45,122,369

53,601,509

-

(239,178)

(701,653,564)
1,550,000
-

55,191

2,973

572,022,500

(56,500,000) (142,800,000)
(12,084,511)

(823,042)

1,149

(1,247,111) (700,284,578)

54,000,000

1,351

(8,790,270)

278,000,030

(3,316,560)

(49,773)

(167,055)
(1,140,241)
58,296
524,360
(724,640)

54,000,000
(56,500,000)
(12,084,511)
-

(37,424,151) (39,453,936) (37,424,151) (39,453,936)

657,691,549

2,804,513
2,608,717
5,413,230

(54,038,447) 657,691,549

(54,038,447)

2,529,340

(1,161,578)

4,662,534

2,133,194

(711,879)
3,320,596
2,608,717

2,133,194

3,294,772
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statements of Cash Flows comprise the following:
    Group

2020
RM

2019
RM

    Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

Bank balances

1,713,230

1,608,717

1,562,534

1,383,194

Deposits with licensed financial institutions

3,700,000

1,000,000

3,100,000

750,000

5,413,230

2,608,717

4,662,534

2,133,194

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Group

    Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

As at 1 January

274,800,000

277,300,000

274,800,000

277,300,000

Drawdown

572,022,500

54,000,000

572,022,500

54,000,000

Repayment

(142,800,000)

(56,500,000) (142,800,000)

(56,500,000)

As at 31 December

704,022,500

Bank borrowings

274,800,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

704,022,500

274,800,000
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UOA REIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
UOA Real Estate Investment Trust (“UOA REIT” or “Trust”) was constituted under a Deed dated 28 November 2005
(“Deed”), by the Manager, UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd (“Manager”) and RHB Trustees Berhad (“Trustee”).
UOA REIT commenced operations on 1 December 2005.
UOA REIT was listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 30 December 2005. The principal
activity of UOA REIT is investment in real estate and real estate-related assets used, or predominantly used, for
commercial purposes, whether directly or indirectly through the ownership of single-purpose companies which
wholly own real estate. There has been no significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial
year.
The Manager, a company incorporated in Malaysia, is a subsidiary of UOA Corporation Berhad, (a subsidiary of
UOA Holdings Sdn Bhd which in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Overseas Australia Ltd, a company
incorporated in Australia and listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Singapore).
The principal activity of the Manager is the management of real estate investment trusts. There has been no
significant change in the nature of this activity during the financial year.
The principal activity of the subsidiary company is disclosed in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.
The consolidated financial statements reported for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 relates to the
Trust and its subsidiary company (“the Group”).
The financial statements were approved by the Manager’s Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of
the Directors passed on 17 February 2021.

2.

TERM OF THE TRUST
UOA REIT will continue its operations until such time as determined by the Trustee and the Manager as provided
under the provisions of Clause 26 of the Deed.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Trust have been prepared in accordance with the Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the Deed and
the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements of the Group and of the Trust are prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties that have been measured at fair value.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the
Group and by the Trust.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial market takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group and the Trust use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to their fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1:

Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3:

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
and the Trust determine whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting date.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group and the Trust have determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
3.3 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is the Group’s and the Trust’s
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest RM except when otherwise stated.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.4 Adoption of new standards/amendments/improvements to MFRSs
The Group and the Trust have consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 4 to all years
presented in these financial statements.
At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Trust adopted new standards/amendments/
improvements to MFRSs which are mandatory for the financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Initial application of the new standards/amendments/improvements to financial standards did not have
material impact to the Financial Statements.
3.5 Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective are disclosed
below. The Group and the Trust intend to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if
applicable, when they become effective:
Amendments to MFRS effective 1 June 2020:
Amendments to MFRS 16   Covid-19 Related Rent Concession
Amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretations effective 1 January 2022:
Amendments to MFRS 3   Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to MFRS 137* Onerous Contract – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 – 2020 (MFRS 1*, 9, 16 and 141*)
Amendments to MFRSs effective 1 January 2023:
MFRS 17 and amendments   Insurance Contracts
to MFRS 17*
Amendments to MFRS 101 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to MFRSs – effective date deferred indefinitely:
MFRS 10 and 128*     Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
* Not applicable to the Group’s and the Trust’s operations
The initial application of the above standards, amendments and interpretation are not expected to have any
financial impacts to the financial statements.
3.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial
statements. They affect the application of the Group’s and the Trust’s accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual result
may differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal
the estimated results.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
3.6.1 Estimation uncertainty
Information about significant judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below.
Useful lives of depreciable assets
Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. Management
estimates the useful lives of the depreciable assets to be within 5 to 10 years and reviews the useful
lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date. As at the reporting date, management assesses that
the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Group and to the Trust. Actual results,
however, may vary due to change in the expected level of usage and technological developments,
which may result in adjustments to the Group’s and to the Trust’s assets.
Fair value of investment properties
The Group’s and the Trust’s measure their investment properties at fair value with changes in fair value
being recognised in profit or loss. Significant judgement is required in the determination of fair value
which may be derived based on different valuation method. In making the judgement, the Group and
the Trust evaluate based on past experience and reliance on the work of specialists. The Group and the
Trust engage independent valuation specialists to determine fair values.
The carrying amount of investment properties at the end of the reporting year and the relevant
revaluation bases are disclosed in the Note 6 to the Financial Statements.
Impairment of non-financial assets
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each asset or cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected
future cash flows, management makes assumptions about future operating results. The actual results
may vary, and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s and to the Trust’s assets within the next
financial year.
In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustments
to market risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors.
Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables
The Group and the Trust use a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due of outstanding debts.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s and on the Trust’s historical observed default rates.
The Group and the Trust will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the Group’s and the Trust’s related economic sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
3.6.1 Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables (continued)
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s and the Trust’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s and the Trust’s trade receivables is disclosed in
Note 32 to the Financial Statements.
Income taxes
Significant judgement is involved in determining the capital allowances and deductibility of expenses
during the estimation of the provision for income tax. There are certain transactions and computations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group and the Trust recognise liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is made.
3.6.2 Significant management judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the
Group and of the Trust that have the most significant effect on these financial statements.
Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Group and the Trust determine whether properties qualify as investment properties and have
developed the criteria in making that judgement. Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Certain properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. The Group and the Trust account for the portions separately if the portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease). If the portions could not be sold separately,
the properties are investment properties only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
Deferred tax on investment properties
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the management of the Group and the Trust review the
investment properties and concluded that the Group’s and the Trust’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to recover the carrying amount of the investment properties
through sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.6 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
3.6.2 Significant management judgements (continued)
Deferred tax on investment properties (continued)
Accordingly, the Group and the Trust recognise deferred taxes in respect of the changes in fair value
of investment properties based on Real Property Gains Tax (“RPGT”). The final tax outcome could be
different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the financial statements should the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties be subsequently substantially consumed over time
rather than through sale.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group and the Trust apply the significant accounting policies, as summarised below, consistently throughout
all years presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.
4.1

Consolidation
4.1.1 Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company is entity, including structured entity, controlled by the Trust. Control exists when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered
when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. Besides, the Group considers it has de
facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current
ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
Investment in subsidiary company is stated at cost less any impairment losses in the Trust’s financial
position, unless the investment is held for sale or distribution.
Upon the disposal of investment in a subsidiary company, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and its carrying amount is included in profit or loss.
4.1.2 Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the audited financial statements of the Trust and its
subsidiary, which have been prepared in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiary have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The financial statements of the Trust
and its subsidiary are all drawn up to the same reporting date.
All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation and
the consolidated financial statements reflect external transactions only.
Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer
consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.1

Consolidation (continued)
4.1.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Trust owners’ ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions between the Group and non-controlling interest holders. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity.
4.1.3 Loss of control
When the Trust loses control of a subsidiary:
(i)	It derecognises the assets and liabilities, non-controlling interests, and other amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to the former subsidiary.
(ii)	It recognises any gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group, which is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received, if any, from
the transaction, event or circumstances that resulted in the loss of control; plus any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost; and (ii) the net
carrying amount of assets, liabilities, goodwill and any non-controlling interests attributable to the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost.
(iii) It recognises any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value when control is
lost and subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary
in accordance with relevant MFRS. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or joint venture.
4.2 Plant and equipment
All plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and to the Trust and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use,
cost of replacing component parts of the assets, and the present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of the assets after their use. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
All plant and equipment are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less any
impairment losses. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals,
the Group and the Trust recognise such costs as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation
respectively. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Plant and equipment are written down to recoverable amount if, in the opinion of the Managers, it is
less than their carrying value. Recoverable amount is the net selling price of the plant and equipment,
that is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.2 Plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is recognised on the straight-line method in order to write off the cost of each asset over its
estimated useful life.
The principal annual depreciation rates used are as follows:
Office equipment
Computer
Office renovation

10%
20%
10%

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and no further
charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.
Restoration cost relating to an item of plant and equipment is capitalised only if such expenditure is expected
to increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, or at least annually to ensure that
the amount, method and rate of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of plant and equipment.
Plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising on the disposal of plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the assets and are recognised in profit
or loss in the financial year in which such asset is derecognised.
4.3 Investment properties
Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction cost. Cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment properties.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value and are revalued annually
and are included in the statements of financial position at their open market values. Any gain or loss resulting
from either a change in the fair value or the sale of investment properties are immediately recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The fair values are determined by external professional valuers with
sufficient experience with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment properties and are
supported by market evidence.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they are disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit or loss in the financial year of retirement or disposal.
Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment properties to owner-occupied properties, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change. If owner-occupied properties becomes an investment properties, the Group and
the Trust account for such properties in accordance with the policy stated under plant and equipment up to
the date of change.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.4 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
4.4.1 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Trust’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group and the Trust have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the Trust initially measure a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group and the Trust have applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
The Group’s and the Trust’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets are
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured
at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.
the date that the Group and the Trust commit to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
•	Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
•	Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)
•	Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
•	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
At the reporting date, the Group and the Trust carry only financial assets at amortised cost on their
statements of financial position.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.4 Financial instruments (continued)
4.4.1 Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (“EIR”)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group’s and the Trust’s financial assets at amortised
cost include trade and other receivables, amount owing by a subsidiary company and cash and cash
equivalents.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:
•	The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
•	The Group and the Trust have transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group and the Trust have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and the Trust have neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but have transferred
control of the asset.
When the Group and the Trust have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a passthrough arrangement, they evaluate if, and to what extent, have retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When they have neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Trust continue
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
and the Trust also recognise an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group and the Trust have retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group and the Trust could be required to repay.
Impairment
The Group and the Trust recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
The Group and the Trust measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss,
except for debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, cash and
bank balance and other debt securities for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, which are measured at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for trade receivables
and lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.4 Financial instruments (continued)
4.4.1 Financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group and the Trust consider reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s and the Trust’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information,
where available.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected
credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group and the Trust are exposed to credit risk.
The Group and the Trust estimate the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision
matrix with reference to historical credit loss experience.
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or
loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Trust assess whether the financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group and the Trust determine
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s or the Trust’s procedures for
recovery amounts due.
4.4.2 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
•	Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
•	Financial liabilities at amortised cost
At the reporting date, the Group and the Trust carry only financial liabilities at amortised cost on their
statements of financial position.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.4 Financial instruments (continued)
4.4.2 Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, carrying amounts are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statements of profit or loss.
The Group’s and the Trust’s financial liabilities include other payables and bank borrowings.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statements of profit or loss.
4.4.3 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group and the Trust review the carrying amounts of their non-financial assets
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).
In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a cash-generating
unit or groups of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to those units or group of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit or loss immediately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at each end of the reporting year as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
4.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and deposits with licensed financial institutions which are
readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
4.7 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Trust incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until
the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
year in which they incurred.
4.8 Leases
The Group and the Trust assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease, that is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As lessor
Leases in which the Group and the Trust do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statements of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
4.9 Revenue
4.9.1 Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the specific tenure of the respective leases. Lease
incentives and rebates granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of
the lease.
4.9.2 Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.10 Tax expense
4.10.1 Current tax
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial
year and are measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting year and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax is recognised in the statements of financial position as a liability (or an asset) to the extent that
it is unpaid (or refundable).
4.10.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised using the liabilities method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting date.
Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held with the objective to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
4.11 Earnings per unit
The earnings per unit (“EPU”) are presented on basic and diluted format.
Basic EPU is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to unitholders by the weighted average number
of units outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPU is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to unitholders against the weighted average
number of units outstanding adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units.
4.12 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker who is responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance of the operating segments and
making strategic decisions for the Group.
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5.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
  

Office
equipment
RM

Computer
RM

Office
renovation
RM

Total
RM

At 1.1.2019

186,275

10,680

-

196,955

Additions

59,055

12,000

96,000

167,055

-

-

Group and Trust
Cost

Written off

(9,380)

At 31.12.2019

235,950

22,680

96,000

354,630

Additions

192,825

-

46,353

239,178

-

-

426,732

22,680

142,353

591,765

At 1.1.2019

90,142

4,521

-

94,663

Charge for the year

16,490

3,556

6,625

26,671

-

-

Written off
At 31.12.2020
Accumulated depreciation

Written off
At 31.12.2019
Charge for the year
Written off

(2,043)

(6,617)

(2,043)

(6,617)

100,015

8,077

6,625

114,717

37,600

3,956

11,916

53,472

-

-

136,721

12,033

18,541

167,295

31.12.2020

290,011

10,647

123,812

424,470

31.12.2019

135,935

14,603

89,375

239,913

Group
RM

Trust
RM

1,035,100,000

1,030,600,000

1,140,241

1,140,241

At 31.12.2020
Net carrying amount

6.

(9,380)

(894)

(894)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1.1.2019
Additions from enhancements
Disposal
At 31.12.2019
Acquisition
Disposal
Fair value adjustment
At 31.12.2020

-

(4,376,958)

1,036,240,241

1,027,363,283

701,653,564

701,653,564

(1,550,000)

(1,550,000)

1,756,195

3,633,153

1,738,100,000

1,731,100,000

Investment properties as at 31 December 2020 are stated at fair value based on valuations conducted by an
independent firm of professional valuers registered with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers & Estate Agents
Malaysia using the comparison and income method of valuation.
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6.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
The fair value represents the amount at which the properties could be exchanged on an open market basis
between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date. The fair value should also reflect market conditions at the reporting date.
A full valuation has been conducted and the Board of Directors have obtained updated market values of
the investment properties as at 7 August 2020 and 31 December 2020 from a registered independent valuer
(“Valuer”). Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts has allowed the valuation
report to be prepared for a date of valuation that must not be more than six months before the financial year
end. The Board of Directors assessed that the book value for the investment property of which full valuation was
carried out on 7 August 2020 is fair, considering that events that occurred after the valuation date did not have
a material impact onto the investment property’s market value.
In arriving at the updated market value, the Valuer has applied the comparison and income method to assess
the market value of the investment properties as at the reporting date. The valuation method and key inputs
applied by the Valuer has also taken into consideration the impact of Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19”).
The fair value of investment properties is classified under Level 3.
Details of Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
Valuation method and key inputs

Significant unobservable inputs

Relationship of unobservable
inputs and fair value

Income method which capitalises
the actual or estimated rental
income stream, net of projected
operating costs, using a discount
rate derived from market yields

Discount rate of 5.00% to 6.25%
(2019: 6.25%)

The higher the discount rate the
lower the fair value

Estimated market yield of 5.00%
to 6.25% (2019: 6.50%)

The higher the estimated market
yield, the lower the fair value

Occupancy rate of 78.05% to
93.09% (2019: 79.29% to 98.76%)

The higher the occupancy rate, the
higher the fair value

All land/strata titles are registered in the name of the Trustee.
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6.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Group

Description of properties

Tenure

Acquisition
cost
RM

Date of last
valuation

Last
valuation
RM

Freehold

55,981,272

31.12.2020

78,700,000

78,700,000

8.03

As at 31 December 2020
UOA Centre Parcels

Percentage of
fair value to
Net Asset
Value
Fair value
%
RM

UOA II Parcels

Freehold

194,502,300

31.12.2020

291,600,000

291,600,000

29.75

UOA Damansara Parcels

Freehold

72,000,000

31.12.2020

118,700,000

118,700,000

12.11

Wisma UOA Damansara II

Freehold

211,000,000

31.12.2020

231,100,000

231,100,000

23.57

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar Leasehold 287,760,483

31.12.2020

300,000,000

300,000,000

30.60

718,000,000

718,000,000

73.24

UOA Corporate Tower

Leasehold 701,653,564

7.8.2020

1,522,897,619

1,738,100,000 1,738,100,000

As at 31 December 2019
UOA Centre Parcels

Freehold

55,981,272

31.12.2018

85,100,000

85,100,000

12.04

UOA II Parcels

Freehold

194,502,300

31.12.2018

294,000,000

294,000,000

41.61

UOA Damansara Parcels

Freehold

72,000,000

31.12.2018

121,000,000

121,000,000

17.13

Wisma UOA Damansara II

Freehold

211,000,000

31.12.2018

235,000,000

236,140,241

33.42

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar Leasehold 289,000,000

31.12.2018

300,000,000

300,000,000

42.46

822,483,572

1,035,100,000 1,036,240,241

The valuations were conducted by PA International Property Consultants (KL) Sdn Bhd in year 2020 and PPC
International Sdn Bhd in previous years, both of which are independent firms of professional valuers registered
with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers & Estate Agents Malaysia, using the comparison and income method of
valuation.
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6.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Trust

Percentage of
fair value to
Net Asset
Value
Fair value
%
RM

Tenure

Acquisition
cost
RM

Date of last
valuation

Last
valuation
RM

UOA Centre Parcels

Freehold

55,981,272

31.12.2020

78,700,000

78,700,000

7.99

UOA II Parcels

Freehold

194,502,300

31.12.2020

291,600,000

291,600,000

29.59

UOA Damansara Parcels

Freehold

72,000,000

31.12.2020

118,700,000

118,700,000

12.05

Wisma UOA Damansara II

Freehold

211,000,000

31.12.2020

231,100,000

231,100,000

23.45

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar Leasehold 278,778,785

31.12.2020

293,000,000

293,000,000

29.73

718,000,000

718,000,000

72.86

Description of properties
As at 31 December 2020

UOA Corporate Tower

Leasehold 701,653,564

7.8.2020

1,513,915,921

1,731,100,000 1,731,100,000

As at 31 December 2019
UOA Centre Parcels

Freehold

55,981,272

31.12.2018

85,100,000

85,100,000

11.99

UOA II Parcels

Freehold

194,502,300

31.12.2018

294,000,000

294,000,000

41.41

UOA Damansara Parcels

Freehold

72,000,000

31.12.2018

121,000,000

121,000,000

17.04

Wisma UOA Damansara II

Freehold

211,000,000

31.12.2018

235,000,000

236,140,241

33.26

Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar Leasehold 279,875,695

31.12.2018

291,500,000

291,123,042

41.00

813,359,267

1,026,600,000 1,027,363,283

The valuations were conducted by PA International Property Consultants (KL) Sdn Bhd in year 2020 and PPC
International Sdn Bhd in previous years, both of which are independent firms of professional valuers registered
with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers & Estate Agents Malaysia, using the comparison and income method of
valuation.
As at 31 December 2020, UOA II Parcels, UOA Damansara Parcels, Wisma UOA Damansara II, Parcel B – Menara
UOA Bangsar (excluding Petak 9 and 14) and UOA Corporate Tower with an aggregate carrying amount of
RM1,652,400,000 (2019: RM1,013,363,283) have been pledged as security for borrowings referred to in Note 14 to
the Financial Statements.
The direct operating expenses are disclosed in Note 18 to the Financial Statements.
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7.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
   Trust
2020
RM

2019
RM

2

2

Unquoted shares, in cost
The details of the subsidiary company, is as follows:
Principal
place of
business

Angkara Restu Sdn Bhd

8.

Malaysia

Principal
activity

Equity interest
2020
%

2019
%

100

100

Property
investment

TRADE RECEIVABLES
   Group

Trade receivables

2020
RM

4,263,246

2019
RM

1,919,556

   Trust

2020
RM

4,244,688

2019
RM

1,909,722

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses
As at 1 January
Additions
Reversal
Written off
As at 31 December

(703,952)

(1,217,642)
44,804

139,498

(1,737,292)
2,525,954

(707,620)

(703,952)

(116,869) (1,217,642)
67,037

53,500

44,804

139,498

(703,952) (1,737,292)

1,215,604

2,507,396

The credit term for monthly rental from tenants is 14 (2019: 14) days.
Allowance for expected credit losses was reversed as a result of receipts during the financial year.

(707,620)
(116,869)
67,037
53,500
(703,952)
1,205,770
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9.

OTHER RECEIVABLES
     Group and Trust
2020
RM

Non-trade receivables
Deposits
Prepayment

2019
RM

14,336,371

3,478,193

158,985

163,703

2,880,498

2,879,298

17,375,854

6,521,194

Included in non-trade receivables are amounts of RM11,884,972 (2019: Nil) due from companies related to Manager
out of which RM11,706,497 (2019: Nil) relates to the tenants’ deposits transferred from a company related to the
Manager upon the completion of the acquisition of the UOA Corporate Tower on 30 December 2020.
10. AMOUNT OWING BY A SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
The amount owing by a subsidiary company represents interest free advances which are unsecured and expected
to be repaid in the next 12 months.
11.

DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
The effective interest rates of deposits ranged between 1.25% and 2.55% (2019: 2.50% to 3.25%) per annum. The
deposits had maturity terms of one month or less.

12.

OTHER PAYABLES
   Group

Non-current

Tenants’ deposits

Current

Amount owing to the Manager

 Amount owing to companies related to the Manager
Non-trade payables
Interest payables
Accruals
Tenants’ deposits
Rental received in advance

   Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

12,003,061

9,650,696

11,956,452

9,495,514

435,781

418,293

435,781

418,293

925,982

1,055,991

925,760

1,055,991

6,001

34,677

482,558

405,567

20,685,267

12,227,827

25,260,859

15,420,340

2,294,692

430,578

37,263,920

743,350
534,635
25,071,036

6,001

34,671

482,558

405,567

20,550,329

12,203,761

25,064,035

15,383,682

2,288,623
374,983

37,020,487

737,772
527,627
24,879,196
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12.

OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The amount owing to the Manager which represents management fee payable and the amounts owing to
companies related to the Manager are unsecured and expected to be settled within the normal credit period of
30 (2019: 30) days.
Included in tenants’ deposits refundable within 12 months of the Group and of the Trust are deposits received
from companies related to the Manager amounting to RM5,899,842 (2019: RM2,950,436).

13.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
     Group and Trust

At 1 January
Charged to profit or loss (Note 22)
At 31 December

2020
RM

2019
RM

3,602,000

19,776,000

19,776,000
23,378,000

-

19,776,000

The deferred tax liabilities represent the tax effects of RPGT on fair value adjustment of investment properties.
14.

BANK BORROWINGS
     Group and Trust

Secured

Revolving credit I
Revolving credit II
Revolving credit III
Revolving credit IV
Revolving credit V
Revolving credit VI

2020
RM

2019
RM

-

61,700,000

-

55,000,000

156,000,000

156,000,000

422,000,000

-

3,900,000

2,100,000

122,122,500

-

704,022,500

274,800,000

In previous year, revolving credits I and II were secured by legal charges over UOA Centre Parcels and UOA II Parcels
(excluding Level 17, UOA II).
Revolving credit III is secured by a legal charge over Wisma UOA Damansara II.
Revolving credit IV is secured by Loan Agreements cum Assignment, Deeds of Extension of Deed of Assignment, Deeds
of Assignment of Rental Proceeds (“DARP”), Deeds of Extension of DARP and four (4) Powers of Attorney, and legal
charges over UOA Damansara Parcels and Parcel B – Menara UOA Bangsar (excluding Petak 9 and 14).
Revolving credit V is secured by a legal charge over UOA II Parcels.
Revolving credit VI is secured by a legal charge over UOA Corporate Tower.
The revolving credits are subject to periodic review and repayable on demand. The Manager is of the opinion
that the facility will be rolled over and remain available in the long term.
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14.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
The effective interest/profit rates of the borrowings ranging from 2.63% to 4.10% (2019: 3.80% to 4.35%) per
annum except revolving credit VI with the fixed interest rate of 2.75% (2019: Nil) per annum.
Changes in borrowings arising from financing activities pertain to drawdown and repayment made in the
statements of cash flows.

15.

PROVISION FOR INCOME DISTRIBUTION
     Group and Trust

At 1 January
Provision during the year
Distribution paid/payable
At 31 December

2020
RM

2019
RM

20,593,855

21,524,173

(37,424,151)

(39,453,936)

35,690,377

38,523,618

18,860,081

20,593,855

2020
RM

2019
RM

71,801,369

78,196,742

276,735

1,059,009

The distribution to unitholders is from the following sources of the Trust:

Sources of income
Gross rental income
Interest income
Other income

55,191

58,296

72,133,295

79,314,047

20,238,105

20,545,530

Expenses (excluding Manager’s fees)
Property expenses
Non-property expenses

Net income before Manager’s fees, income distribution, fair value gain on
 investment properties, net changes on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost and taxation
Fair value gain on investment properties
Net changes on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Manager’s fees
Tax expense
Undistributed income during the year
- Unrealised
- Realised
Total income distribution during the year
Distribution per year (sen)

10,681,073

12,544,686

30,919,178

33,090,216

41,214,117

46,223,831

3,633,153

-

(40,232)

(4,826,221)
(3,602,000)

151,773
(4,878,712)
(21,070,418)

36,378,817

20,426,474

9,079

19,624,227

35,690,377

38,523,618

8.44

9.11

(697,519)

(1,527,083)
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16. UNITHOLDERS’ CAPITAL
     Group and Trust

Issued and fully paid with no par value:

2020
RM

2019
RM

422,871,776

422,871,776

675,599,076

422,871,776

476,062,161

476,062,161

Number of units (Units)
  At 1 January

  Issuance via Private Placement (Note 34(a))

252,727,300

  At 31 December

-

Unitholders’ capital (RM)
  At 1 January

Issuance via Private Placement (Note 34(a))

  New units issuance expenses

-

750,745,631

476,062,161

(3,316,560)

  At 31 December
17.

278,000,030

-

GROSS RENTAL
Gross rental represents rental income from the investment properties and are generated from Malaysia.

18. PROPERTY OPERATING EXPENSES
   Group

Assessment and quit rent
Insurance
Maintenance fees
Others
Direct operating expenses
Property management fees

2020
RM

2019
RM

3,732,838

3,961,563

9,949,375

9,935,913

220,767

207,192

   Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

3,718,147

3,948,508

9,769,577

9,757,563

219,925

206,251

4,250,823

4,174,155

4,227,844

4,155,795

18,153,803

18,278,823

17,935,493

18,068,117

20,456,415

20,756,236

20,238,105

20,545,530

2,302,612

2,477,413

2,302,612

2,477,413

19. MANAGER’S FEES
The Manager is entitled under the Deed to a management fee of up to 1.00% per annum of the Net Asset Value
of the Trust, calculated on a monthly accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears.
For the financial year, the Manager charged a manager’s fees of RM4,826,221 (2019: RM4,878,712) which was
calculated based on 0.67% (2019: 0.67%) of the Net Asset Value of the Trust on monthly basis.
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20. TRUSTEE’S FEES
The Trustee is entitled to a fee of up to 0.05% per annum of Net Asset Value of the Trust, calculated on a monthly
accrual basis and payable monthly in arrears.
For the financial year, the Trustee charged a trustee’s fees of RM216,099 (2019: RM218,450) which was calculated
based on 0.03% (2019: 0.03%) of the Net Asset Value of the Trust.
21.

FINANCE COSTS
     Group and Trust
2020
RM

8,867,261

Interest expense on revolving credit

2019
RM

11,770,313

22. TAX EXPENSE
   Group

   Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

83,000

80,000

-

-

3,602,000

19,776,000

3,602,000

19,776,000

Underprovision of current tax in prior years

-

312

-

-

RPGT on disposed properties

-

1,294,418

-

1,294,418

3,685,000

21,150,730

3,602,000

21,070,418

Current year provision
- current tax
- deferred tax (Note 13)

Tax expense

The numerical reconciliation of tax expense on income before tax with the statutory tax rate is as follows:
   Group

Income before tax
Taxation at statutory tax rate of 24%
Non-deductible expenses

   Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

38,435,875

40,986,917

39,980,817

41,496,892

9,224,610

9,836,860

9,595,396

9,959,254

257,073

647,609

253,757

445,215

(9,398,683)

(10,404,469)

(9,849,153)

(10,404,469)

3,602,000

19,776,000

3,602,000

19,776,000

RPGT on disposed properties

-

1,294,418

-

1,294,418

Underprovision of current tax in prior years

-

312

-

-

3,685,000

21,150,730

3,602,000

21,070,418

Non-taxable income
RPGT on fair value adjustment of
investment properties

Tax expense
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22. TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
Pursuant to the amended Section 61A of the Income Tax Act, 1967, where in the basis period for a year of
assessment, 90% or more of the total income of the trust is distributed to its unitholders, the total income of the
trust for that year of assessment shall be exempted from corporate tax.
23. EARNINGS PER UNIT
The EPU after manager’s fees of the Group and of the Trust have been calculated by dividing income after tax for
the financial year of RM34,750,875 and RM36,378,817 (2019: RM19,836,187 and RM20,426,474) by the weighted
average number of units in issue of 425,633,823 (2019: 422,871,776).
The EPU before manager’s fees of the Group and of the Trust have been calculated by dividing income after tax
before deduction of manager’s fees for the financial year of RM39,577,096 and RM41,205,038 (2019: RM24,714,899
and RM25,305,186) by the weighted average number of units in issue of 425,633,823 (2019: 422,871,776).
Diluted EPU equals to Basic EPU as there are no potential dilutive units in issue.
24. TRANSACTIONS WITH STOCKBROKING COMPANIES
There were no transactions made with stockbroking companies during current and prior years.
25. MANAGEMENT EXPENSE RATIO
    Group and Trust

Management expense ratio ("MER")

2020
%

2019
%

0.70

0.78

MER is calculated based on the total administrative expenses incurred by the Group and the Trust divided by the
average value of the Net Asset Value for the financial year calculated on a quarterly basis.
As the basis of calculation may vary among real estate investment trusts, no accurate comparison can be made
between the Group’s and the Trust’s MER with other real estate investment trusts.
26. UNITHOLDERS BY THE MANAGER
The Manager did not hold any direct units in the Trust in current and prior years.
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27. UNITHOLDERS RELATED TO THE MANAGER
    Number of units

Percentage of units in issue

     Market value

2020

2019

2020
%

2019
%

2020
RM

2019
RM

- Alan Charles Winduss

100,000

100,000

0.01

0.02

113,000

123,000

- Dato’ Gan Boon Khuay

100,000

100,000

0.01

0.02

113,000

123,000

- Kung Beng Hong

100,000

100,000

0.01

0.02

113,000

123,000

- Kong Sze Choon

39,000

39,000

0.01

0.01

44,070

47,970

102,261,538

102,261,538

15.14

24.18

115,555,538

125,781,692

- Wisma UOA Sdn Bhd

77,729,000

77,729,000

11.51

18.38

87,833,770

95,606,670

- Rich Accomplishment Sdn Bhd

74,661,538

74,661,538

11.05

17.66

84,367,538

91,833,692

- Dynasty Portfolio Sdn Bhd

63,326,600

15,464,500

9.37

3.66

71,559,058

19,021,335

- UOA Corporation Bhd

48,000,000

-

7.10

-

54,240,000

-

- Damai Positif Sdn Bhd

-

48,000,000

-

11.35

-

59,040,000

5,600,700

5,600,700

0.83

1.32

6,328,791

6,888,861

   - Kong May Chee

15,900

15,900

0.00

0.00

17,967

19,557

   - Kong Ai Chee

13,500

13,500

0.00

0.00

15,255

16,605

24,000

24,000

0.00

0.01

27,120

29,520

371,579,376

323,717,276

55.00

76.55

419,884,695

398,172,249

Directors of the Manager:

Companies related to the Manager:
- Desa Bukit Pantai Sdn Bhd

- LTG Development Sdn Bhd
Persons related to the Manager
 via relationship with a Director
of the Manager

Director of the Manager
(indirect interest)
   - Kong Sze Choon *
Persons related to the Manager
 via relationship with a Director
 of the Manager (indirect interest)
   - Kong Chong Soon @ Chi Suim **
*

Deemed interest through his shareholding in Global Transact Sdn Bhd.

** 	Deemed interest through his shareholdings in United Overseas Australia Ltd (the ultimate holding company
of Desa Bukit Pantai Sdn Bhd, Wisma UOA Sdn Bhd, Rich Accomplishment Sdn Bhd, UOA Corporation Bhd,
Dynasty Portfolio Sdn Bhd and LTG Development Sdn Bhd).
The market value of the units is determined by using the closing market value of RM1.13 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: RM1.23).
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
or the Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Trust and the party
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel include all Directors of the Manager, and certain members of senior management
of the Manager.
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the significant related party transactions are
disclosed as follows:
     Transaction value
2020
RM

    Balance outstanding

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

700,000,000

-

-

-

1,550,000

-

-

-

10,453,319

11,620,344

203,967

-

44,692

56,540

-

-

311,690

278,400

-

24,592

34,200

34,200

1,590

4,611

705

4,065

-

1,439

-

19,055

-

-

-

-

-

155,000

Transactions with companies related to the Managers:
Group and Trust
Acquisition of investment property
Disposal of investment property
Rental received/receivable
Parking fees paid
Security fees paid/payable
Landscaping fees paid/payable
Repair and maintenance paid/payable
Annual general meeting expenses paid
 Refundable deposits for disposal of
investment property

     Transaction value

    Balance outstanding

2020
RM

2019
RM

2020
RM

2019
RM

202,913

59,747

-

-

-

5,200,000

-

-

Transactions with subsidiary company:
Trust
Rental received/ receivable
Disposal of investment property

The above transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business and have been established
based on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those obtainable in transactions with
unrelated parties.
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29. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF LEASE PAYMENTS
The Group and the Trust as lessor
The Group and the Trust lease out their investment properties under operating leases. These leases are non-cancellable
and typically run for a period ranging from 1 to 5 years, with the option to renew. Subsequent renewals are negotiated
with the lease on average rental period of 1 to 5 years. None of the leases include contingent rentals.
The future undiscounted lease payments receivables after the reporting date are as follows:
   Group

As lessor

Within 1 year
In the second year
In the third year
In the fourth year

2020
RM

2019
RM

97,196,707

62,758,202

28,236,922

8,657,477

178,861,956

99,929,040

52,798,161

27,466,711

630,166

1,046,650

   Trust

2020
RM

2019
RM

96,700,352

62,157,487

52,681,273

27,046,376

630,166

1,046,650

28,236,922
178,248,713

8,546,779
98,797,292

30. SEGMENT REPORTING
The segmental financial information by business or geographical segments is not presented as there is only one
business activity within the investment properties of the Group and of the Trust.
The Manager assesses the financial performance of the operating segments based on, including but not limited
to, net rental income. The net rental income enables financial performance benchmarking as such basis
eliminates the effect of financing and investment decisions which may not be made at operating level.
31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Classification of financial instruments
The Group and the Trust have financial instruments categorised at amortised cost only and details as follows:
   Group

Financial assets

- at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables
Amount owing by a subsidiary company
Deposits with licensed financial institutions
Bank balances

2020
RM

2019
RM

19,742,823

7,573,095

-

3,700,000
1,713,230

25,156,053

1,000,000
1,608,717
10,181,812

   Trust

2020
RM

19,724,265

2019
RM

7,563,261

12,600,529

12,603,502

1,562,534

1,383,194

3,100,000

36,987,328

750,000
22,299,957

Financial liabilities
- at amortised cost
Other payables

Bank borrowings

36,833,342

704,022,500
740,855,842

24,536,401
274,800,000
299,336,401

36,645,504

704,022,500
740,668,004

24,351,569
274,800,000
299,151,569

87

88

UOA REIT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
Included in payables are tenants’ deposits received. The tenants’ deposits are determined based on the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the market interest rate of 1.870% (2019: 2.980%) per annum at the end
of the reporting year.
The carrying amounts of all other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair values due to the relatively
short-term nature of these financial instruments.

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The Group and the Trust operate within clearly defined guidelines as set out in the Securities Commission’s
Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REIT Guidelines”). These REIT Guidelines seek to provide
a regulatory framework that would protect the interests of the investing public. The Group and the Trust are
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk arising from their
operations and the use of financial instruments.
Information regarding the Group’s and the Trust’s exposure to the abovementioned risks and the Group’s and
the Trust’s risk management policies, which ensure compliance with the spirit of the REIT Guidelines, are set out
below:
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a tenant or counter party may be unable to meet their contractual obligations.
At the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statements of financial position.
The Group and the Trust are not exposed to significant credit risks as it is not permitted to extend loans or
any other forms of credit facilities. The risk of non-collectability of monthly rentals is also mitigated with
rental deposits collected from the tenants.
The maximum exposure to credit risk for other receivables is represented by their carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position.
The ageing analysis of receivables as at the reporting date which is trade in nature is as follows:

Group
2020

Not past due
Past due 1 to 30 days
Past due 31 to 90 days
Past due more than 91 days
Past due more than 91 days and after set off with
deposits paid

Gross carrying
amount
RM

124,401

Loss
allowance
RM

-

653,533

-

1,163,036

-

584,984

1,737,292

4,263,246

-

1,737,292

1,737,292

Net
balances
RM

124,401

653,533

584,984

1,163,036
-

2,525,954
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s and the Trust’s exposure to the abovementioned risks and the Group’s and
the Trust’s risk management policies, which ensure compliance with the spirit of the REIT Guidelines, are set out
below (continued):
(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
The ageing analysis of receivables as at the reporting date which is trade in nature is as follows (continued):
Gross carrying
amount
RM

Loss
allowance
RM

Net
balances
RM

Not past due

210,243

-

210,243

Past due 1 to 30 days

229,756

-

229,756

Past due 31 to 90 days

227,508

-

227,508

Past due more than 91 days

548,097

-

548,097

Past due more than 91 days and after set off with
deposits paid

703,952

703,952

-

1,919,556

703,952

1,215,604

Gross carrying
amount
RM

Loss
allowance
RM

Net
balances
RM

Not past due

117,641

-

117,641

Past due 1 to 30 days

643,587

-

643,587

Past due 31 to 90 days

583,132

-

583,132

Past due more than 91 days

1,163,036

-

1,163,036

Past due more than 91 days and after set off with
deposits paid

1,737,292

1,737,292

-

4,244,688

1,737,292

2,507,396

Not past due

201,775

-

201,775

Past due 1 to 30 days

229,121

-

229,121

Past due 31 to 90 days

226,778

-

226,778

Past due more than 91 days

548,096

-

548,096

Past due more than 91 days and after set off with
deposits paid

703,952

703,952

-

1,909,722

703,952

1,205,770

Group (continued)
2019

Trust
2020

2019
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s and the Trust’s exposure to the abovementioned risks and the Group’s and
the Trust’s risk management policies, which ensure compliance with the spirit of the REIT Guidelines, are set out
below (continued):
(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Trust’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s and the Trust’s investments in fixed rate debt securities and its fixed rate borrowings are exposed
to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s and the Trust’s variable rate
borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates.
The Group and the Trust have no exposure to movements in market interest rates other than revolving credit
facilities and deposits with licensed financial institutions.
Financial assets
By placing its deposits on short tenures and at prevailing market interest rates, the Group and the Trust are
able to reduce their exposures to interest rate fluctuations.
Financial liabilities
The Group and the Trust minimise their interest rate risk by borrowing as far as possible at a floating interest
rate.
The information on maturity and effective interest/profit rates on the revolving credits are disclosed in Note
14 to the Financial Statements.
The interest rate profile of the Group’s and Trust’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments, based
on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

2020

Fixed rate instruments

Deposits with licensed financial institutions
Bank borrowings
Floating rate instrument
Bank borrowings

Group
RM

3,700,000

Trust
RM

3,100,000

422,000,000

422,000,000

282,022,500

282,022,500

1,000,000

750,000

274,800,000

274,800,000

2019

Fixed rate instruments

Deposits with licensed financial institutions
Floating rate instrument
Bank borrowings
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s and the Trust’s exposure to the abovementioned risks and the Group’s and
the Trust’s risk management policies, which ensure compliance with the spirit of the REIT Guidelines, are set out
below (continued):
(b) Interest rate risk (continued)
A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the outstanding floating rate borrowings of the Group
and the Trust as at the reporting date. If interest rates increase or decrease by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s and the Trust’s income after tax would decrease or increase by
RM1,410,000 (2019: RM1,374,000), as a result of higher or lower interest expense on these borrowings.
(c)

Liquidity risk
The Group and the Trust ensure that there are adequate funds to repay the revolving credit in a timely
and cost-effective manner. Sources of funds can be via issuance of units, internally generated funds or
borrowings. As timing of these arrangements is critical, the Group and the Trust may be exposed to the risk
of its investment properties being foreclosed in the interim. However, the Manager is of the opinion that the
facilities will be rolled over and remain available for the long term and there is no imminent obligation to
repay.

Group
2020

Other payables
Bank borrowings

Carrying
amount
RM

36,833,342

Other payables
Bank borrowings

Trust
2020

Other payables
Bank borrowings

Other payables
Bank borrowings

1 to
5 years
RM

24,830,281

12,367,029

723,113,699

723,113,699
747,943,980

12,367,029

24,536,401

24,940,601

14,885,705

10,054,896

274,800,000

285,941,370

285,941,370

-

299,336,401

310,881,971

300,827,075

10,054,896

Carrying
amount
RM

Contractual
cash flows
RM

Less than
1 year
RM

1 to
5 years
RM

24,689,052

12,320,420

747,802,751

12,320,420

36,645,504

704,022,500
740,668,004

2019

37,197,310

Less than
1 year
RM

704,022,500
740,855,842

2019

Contractual
cash flows
RM

760,311,009

37,009,472

723,113,699
760,123,171

723,113,699

-

-

24,351,569

24,755,769

14,856,055

9,899,714

274,800,000

285,941,370

285,941,370

-

299,151,569

310,697,139

300,797,425

9,899,714
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33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain unitholder, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Directors of the Manager monitor and determine an optimal
debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements.
UOA REIT is permitted to procure borrowings of up to 50% of its total asset value pursuant to the REIT Guidelines.
Total borrowings compared to total asset value at the reporting date is as follows:
     Group
2020
RM

2019
RM

Total asset value (RM)

1,763,839,508

1,046,825,669

Total borrowings (RM)

704,022,500

274,800,000

40

26

Total borrowings to total asset value (%)
34. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(a)	Acquisition of UOA Corporate Tower

On 28 September 2020, the Trust had entered into a conditional Sales and Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with
Distinctive Acres Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of UOA Development Bhd and Paramount
Properties Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of UOA Development Bhd for the proposed acquisition of
UOA Corporate Tower for a total cash consideration of RM700 million (“Proposed Acquisition”). The Trust had
undertaken a proposed private placement of new units in the Trust to raise gross proceeds of up to RM280
million by way of bookbuilding exercise (“Proposed Private Placement”) and remaining RM420 million was
funded through debt financing.
The Proposed Acquisition and Proposed Private Placement had been approved by the unitholders during
the extraordinary general meeting held on 10 December 2020. The Proposed Private Placement has been
completed following the listing and quotation of 252,727,300 Placement Units on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad on 29 December 2020, raising gross proceeds of approximately RM278 million
with an issue price at RM1.10 per Placement Unit fixed by the Board.
The Proposed Acquisition was completed on 30 December 2020 upon fulfilment with the terms and
conditions of the SPA.
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34. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)
(b) Financial impact on COVID-19
The outbreak of COVID-19 which was declared by the World Health Organisation as a pandemic on 11 March
2020 had caused a series of precautionary and control measures to be implemented across the world. The
Malaysia Government imposed various Movement Control Order (“MCO”), Conditional Movement Control
Order (“CMCO”) and Recovery Movement Control Order (“RMCO”) since 18 March 2020.
Consequently, with all these restrictions imposed, Malaysia’s economy was adversely affected, consumers’
behaviors had changed over time and businesses were unable to carry on for a period of time in compliance
with the orders from Government. As at the date of this report, the management of the Group has assessed
the overall impact of the situation on the Group’s and the Trust’s operations. There was financial impact for
the current financial year on the Group’s and Trust’s rental business as both the Group and the Trust had
offered rental rebates approximately RM5.1 million to their tenants whose businesses were affected. The
weakened economy had also caused the Trust’s occupancy rate of the investment properties to decrease
by 6%. The overall negative impacts and uncertainty of the market condition had led to the decrease in fair
value of the Group’s and the Trust’s investment properties according to the valuations performed by the
Valuer as disclosed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.
Despite all the mentioned circumstances, rental rates are rather consistent as compared to prior year, mostly
attributed to the Group’s branding, strategic locations of the properties and excellent building management
and the Group and the Trust are actively searching for potential tenants.
Hence, the management of the Group is of the opinion that there is no significant impact on the credit risk of
the tenants and financial results of the Group and the Trust that may materially jeopardize the sustainability
of the Group’s and the Trust’s business despite the dampened consumer demand across the economy and
will continue to closely monitor the impact of the global pandemic on its operations as well as the financial
positions for the financial year ending 31 December 2021.
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ANALYSIS OF UNITHOLDINGS

Distribution of Unitholders as at 31 December 2020
No. of
Unitholders

%

No. of Units
held

%

118

2.85

1,351

0.00

100 to 1,000 units

1,094

26.41

608,805

0.09

1,001 to 10,000 units

1,855

44.79

8,875,084

1.31

10,001 to 100,000 units

760

18.35

24,123,360

3.57

100,001 to less than 5% of issued units

309

7.46

210,554,500

31.17

6

0.14

431,435,976

63.86

4,142

100.00

675,599,076

100.00

Unit Class
Less than 100

5% and above of issued units
Total

Classification of Unitholders as at 31 December 2020
No. of Unitholders
Category of
Unitholders
1) Individual

Malaysian Malaysian NonBumiputra
Bumiputra

No. of Units held
Foreign

Malaysian Malaysian NonBumiputra
Bumiputra

Foreign

145

2,802

62

519,500

73,936,299

3,727,701

a) Banks/Finance
Companies

2

-

-

4,480,000

-

-

b) Investment Trusts
 Foundation/
Charities

1

2

-

218,000

288,000

-

c) Industrial and
 Commercial
Companies

4

43

4

915,000

380,187,676

3,867,800

782

254

40

102,123,500

100,656,100

4,679,400

-

1

-

-

100

-

934

3,102

106

108,256,000

555,068,175

12,274,901

2) Body Corporate

3) Nominees
4) Others
Total
Grand Total

4,142

675,599,076

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
Substantial Shareholders

  Direct

  Indirect

Units

%

Units

%

102,261,538

15.14

-

-

1

Desa Bukit Pantai Sdn Bhd (“Desa Bukit
Pantai”)

2

Dynasty Portfolio Sdn Bhd (“Dynasty”)

63,326,600

9.37

-

-

3

Rich Accomplishment Sdn Bhd (“Rich
Accomplishment”)

74,661,538

11.05

-

-

4

UOA Corporation Bhd (“UOA Corp”)

48,000,000

7.10

5

Wisma UOA Sdn Bhd (“Wisma UOA”)

77,729,000

11.51

-

-

6

UOA Holdings Sdn Bhd (“UOAH”)

-

-

371,579,376

55.00

7

United Overseas Australia Ltd (“UOAL”)

-

-

1

371,579,376

55.00

8

Transmetro Sdn Bhd (“Transmetro”)

-

-

371,579,3762

55.00

9

Griyajaya Sdn Bhd (“Griyajaya”)

-

-

371,579,3763

55.00

10

Kong Chong Soon @ Chi Suim

-

-

371,579,3764

55.00

11

Kong Pak Lim

-

-

371,579,376

55.00

12

Employees Provident Fund

65,457,300

9.69

-

-

1

2

Notes:
1.	Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965 (“the Act”) through its unit holdings in
UOA Corp, Desa Bukit Pantai, Dynasty, LTG Development Sdn Bhd (“LTG”), Rich Accomplishment and Wisma
UOA.
2.	Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Act through its/his unit holdings in UOAL and Griyajaya which
in turn has direct interest in UOAL and indwirect interest in UOAH.
3.	Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Act through its unit holdings in UOAL and indirect interest in
UOAH.
4.	Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A of the Act through his unit holdings in Transmetro which in turn has
direct interest in Griyajaya which in turn has direct interest in UOAL and indirect interest in UOAH.
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THIRTY (30) LARGEST UNITHOLDERS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Unitholders

No. of Units

%

102,261,538

15.14

Wisma UOA Sdn Bhd

77,729,000

11.51

3)

Rich Accomplishment Sdn Bhd

74,661,538

11.05

4)

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Employees Provident Fund Board

65,457,300

9.69

5)

Dynasty Portfolio Sdn Bhd

63,326,600

9.37

6)

UOA Corporation Berhad

48,000,000

7.10

7)

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB For Loh Wee Hian (Pb)

12,750,000

1.89

8)

Db (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Exempt An For Affin Hwang Asset Management Berhad (Tstac/Clnt-T)

12,652,800

1.87

9)

Lim Chee Meng

11,000,000

1.63

10) Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Private Wealth Management For Trinity View Sdn Bhd

9,091,000

1.35

11) LTG Development Sdn Bhd

5,370,700

0.79

12) Agrobulk Holdings Sdn Bhd

5,000,000

0.74

13) Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Private Wealth Management For Tan Boon Seng

4,545,500

0.67

14) Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Private Wealth Management For Tropika Kiara Sdn Bhd

4,545,500

0.67

15) Amanah Raya Berhad - Kumpulan Wang Bersama

4,180,000

0.62

16) HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Ta Kin Yan (Csd Sin/Tky)

4,090,900

0.61

17) Yap Tian Tion

3,522,200

0.52

18) Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
MCIS Insurance Berhad (Life Par Fd)

3,014,600

0.45

19) Tokio Marine Life Insurance Malaysia Bhd
As Beneficial Owner (Pf)

2,909,000

0.43

20) Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Trustees Berhad For Areca Dividend Income Fund

2,545,500

0.38

21) Malacca Equity Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An For Phillip Capital Management Sdn Bhd

2,500,600

0.37

22) Malacca Equity Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An For Phillip Capital Management Sdn Bhd (Epf)

2,074,000

0.31

23) Christina Chan Swee Lee (Christina Zeng Ruili)

2,025,600

0.30

24) Sheldon Wee Tah Poh

1,900,000

0.28

25) Lim Bee Eng

1,829,600

0.27

26) CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad For Affin Hwang Multi-Asset Fund 2

1,818,100

0.27

27) Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Private Wealth Management For Gnanalingam A/L Gunanath Lingam

1,818,000

0.27

28) RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Lye Ek Seang

1,808,500

0.27

29) Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB For Tunku Halim Bin Tunku Abdullah (Pb)

1,800,000

0.27

30) Wong Lee Yun

1,755,800

0.26

535,983,876

79.35

1)

Desa Bukit Pantai Sdn Bhd

2)

Total
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NOTICE OF NINTH
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

UOA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(constituted in Malaysia under the Deed dated
28 November 2005 entered into between
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd and RHB
Trustees Berhad, companies incorporated in
Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1965)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Ninth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust
(“UOA REIT”) will be conducted entirely through live streaming from the broadcast venue at Reflexion, Level 3A,
Connexion Conference & Event Centre (CCEC), Nexus, Bangsar South City, No. 7, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (“Broadcast Venue”) on Wednesday, 21 April 2021 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment, for the following
purposes:
AGENDA
1.

To lay the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
together with the Trustee’s Report to the Unitholders issued by RHB Trustees Berhad, as
trustee for UOA REIT and the Statement by the Manager issued by UOA Asset Management
Sdn Bhd, as the manager of UOA REIT and the Independent Auditors’ Report thereon.

By Order of the Board of
UOA ASSET MANAGEMENT SDN BHD 200201005356 (573019-U)
The Manager of UOA Real Estate Investment Trust

YAP KAI WENG (MAICSA 74580)
WONG YOKE LENG (MAICSA 7032314)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
26 February 2021

(Refer note 2)
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NOTICE OF NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Continued)

Notes:
1.

Important Notice
(i)	Unitholders of UOA REIT (“Unitholders”) WILL NOT BE ALLOWED to attend the AGM in person at the
broadcast venue on the day of the meeting. Unitholders are encouraged to participate and speak (in the
form of real time submission of typed texts) (collectively referred to as “Participate”) remotely at the AGM
using the Remote Participation facilities (“RP”) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
via its TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online. Please follow the Procedures in the Administrative Notes and
take note of Notes (ii) to (xii) below in order to Participate remotely via RP in the AGM.
(ii)	Only depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 14 April 2021 shall be regarded as
Unitholders and be entitled to Participate in the AGM via RP.
(iii)	A Unitholder who is entitled to Participate in the AGM via RP, is entitled to appoint another person (whether
a Unitholder or not) as his/her proxy to Participate at the AGM via RP.
(iv)	Where a Unitholder is a corporation, to appoint a duly authorised representative to Participate in its place,
and shall be entitled to appoint another person (whether a Unitholder or not) as its proxy to Participate at
the AGM via RP.
(v)	Unitholder who is entitled to Participate at a general meeting of UOA REIT may appoint not more than two
proxies to Participate instead of the Unitholder at the AGM via RP.
(vi)	Where a Unitholder is an Authorised Nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories)
Act 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each Securities Account it holds with units of UOA
REIT standing to the credit of the said Securities Account.
(vii)	Where a Unitholder appoints two proxies, the proportion of holdings to be represented by each proxy must
be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.
(viii)	A Unitholder who has appointed a proxy or authorised representative to Participate at the AGM via RP must
request his/her proxy to register himself/herself for RP at TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online. Please
follow the Procedures in the Administrative Notes.
(ix)	The appointment of a proxy shall be made in a hard copy form in the following manner and must be
received by UOA REIT not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM or adjourned
general meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to Participate at the AGM:
a. In hard copy form
		This Proxy Form must be deposited at the Business Office of the Trustee at Level 11, Tower Three, RHB
Centre, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
(x)	Please ensure ALL the particulars as required in the Proxy Form are completed, signed and dated accordingly.
(xi)	Last date and time for lodging the Proxy Form is Tuesday, 20 April 2021 at 10.00 a.m.
(xii)	The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of its attorney duly
authorised in writing or if the appointer is a corporation either under its common seal or under the hand of
an officer or attorney duly authorised.

2.

Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020
This Agenda is meant for discussion only as the Audited Financial Statements do not require formal approval of
Unitholders under the Securities Commission’s Guidelines on Listed Real Estate Investment Trusts. Hence, this
matter will not be put forward for voting.
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PROXY FORM
UOA REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(constituted in Malaysia under the Deed dated
28 November 2005 entered into between
UOA Asset Management Sdn Bhd and RHB
Trustees Berhad, companies incorporated in
Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1965)

CDS Account No.:
No. of Units held:

I / We                          NRIC No. / Company No.                   
of                                  
Tel No.                   
being a Unitholder/Unitholders of UOA REIT, hereby appoint the following person(s) as my proxy:
No.

Name as per NRIC

NRIC No.

% unitholding to be represented

1.
2.
or failing him/her the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to participate on my/our behalf at the Ninth Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) of UOA REIT to be conducted entirely through live streaming from the broadcast venue at
Reflexion, Level 3A, Connexion Conference & Event Centre (CCEC), Nexus, Bangsar South City, No. 7, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on Wednesday, 21 April 2021 at 10.00 a.m., or any adjournment thereof.

Signature of Unitholder(s) / Common Seal for Corporate Unitholder(s)
Date:
Notes:
(i)	Unitholders of UOA REIT (“Unitholders”) WILL NOT BE ALLOWED to attend the AGM in person at the broadcast venue
on the day of the meeting. Unitholders are encouraged to participate and speak (in the form of real time submission
of typed texts) (collectively referred to as “Participate”) remotely at the AGM using the Remote Participation facilities
(“RP”) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd via its TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online.
Please follow the Procedures in the Administrative Notes and take note of Notes (ii) to (xii) below in order to Participate
remotely via RP in the AGM.
(ii)	Only depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 14 April 2021 shall be regarded as Unitholders
and be entitled to Participate in the AGM via RP.
(iii)	A Unitholder who is entitled to Participate in the AGM via RP, is entitled to appoint another person (whether a Unitholder
or not) as his/her proxy to Participate at the AGM via RP.
(iv)	Where a Unitholder is a corporation, to appoint a duly authorised representative to Participate in its place, and shall
be entitled to appoint another person (whether a Unitholder or not) as its proxy to Participate at the AGM via RP.
(v)	Unitholder who is entitled to Participate at a general meeting of UOA REIT may appoint not more than two proxies
to Participate instead of the Unitholder at the AGM via RP.
(vi)	Where a Unitholder is an Authorised Nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991,
it may appoint at least one proxy in respect of each Securities Account it holds with units of UOA REIT standing to the
credit of the said Securities Account.
(vii)	Where a Unitholder appoints two proxies, the proportion of holdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified
in the instrument appointing the proxies.
(viii)	A Unitholder who has appointed a proxy or authorised representative to Participate at the AGM via RP must request
his/her proxy to register himself/herself for RP at TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online. Please follow the Procedures
in the Administrative Notes.
(ix)	The appointment of a proxy shall be made in a hard copy form in the following manner and must be received by UOA
REIT not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM or adjourned general meeting at which
the person named in the appointment proposes to Participate at the AGM:
a. In hard copy form
	This Proxy Form must be deposited at the Business Office of RHB Trustees Berhad at Level 11, Tower Three, RHB
Centre, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
(x)	Please ensure ALL the particulars as required in the Proxy Form are completed, signed and dated accordingly.
(xi)	Last date and time for lodging the Proxy Form is Tuesday, 20 April 2021 at 10.00 a.m.
(xii)	The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of its attorney duly authorised
in writing or if the appointer is a corporation either under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney
duly authorised.
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AFFIX
STAMP

RHB TRUSTEES BERHAD 200201005356 (573019-U)
(as Trustee for UOA Real Estate Investment Trust)

Level 11, Tower Three
Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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UOA ASSET MANAGEMENT SDN BHD
200501015592 (692639-U)

UOA Corporate Tower
Lobby A, Avenue 10, The Vertical
Bangsar South City
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone : +603 2245 9188

Facsimile : +603 2241 4862

www.uoareit.com.my

